Sacramento Regional Fire/EMS Communications Center
10230 Systems Parkway, Sacramento, CA 95827-3007
(916) 228-3070 — Fax (916) 228-3079

1:00 p.m.
Thursday, August 15, 2019
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD
10545 Armstrong Ave - Rooms #384-385
Mather, CA 95655-4102

The Board will convene in open session at 1:00 p.m.
Call to Order Chairperson
Roll Call of Member Agencies Secretary

Primary Board Members

Chris Costamagna, Chairperson Deputy Chief, Sacramento Fire Department

Mike McLaughlin, Vice Chairperson Fire Chief, Cosumnes Fire Department

Chad Wilson, Board Member Division Chief, Folsom Fire Department

Tyler Wagaman, Board Member Assistant Chief, Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District

Pledge of Allegiance

AGENDA UPDATE: An opportunity for Board members to (1) reorder the agenda; and (2) remove agenda items that
are not ready for presentation and/or action at the present Board meeting.

PUBLIC COMMENT: An opportunity for members of the public to address the Governing Board on items within the
subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. Duration of comment is limited to three (3) minutes.

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION: Approximately 1 hour (1:00 — 2:30 p.m.)

1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR*
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6

District Negotiator(s) Lindsay Moore, Counsel
Marc Bentovoja, Executive Director
Employee Organization(s) Teamsters Local 150

Teamsters Local 856

2. PERSONNEL ISSUES*
Pursuant to California Governing Code Section 54957

a. Discipline/Dismissal/Release (2 matters)
b. Evaluation of Performance: Interim Executive Director

3. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Anticipated Litigation*

a. Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9(b)
The Board will meet in closed session to discuss significant exposure to litigation.
One (1) potential case

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION: Begins at 2:30 p.m.
CONSENT AGENDA: Matters of routine approval including, but not limited to Board meeting synopsis,
payroll reports, referral of issues to committee, other consent matters. Consent Agenda is acted upon as

00123801.1
* INDICATES NO ATTACHMENT



one unit unless a Board member requests separate discussion and/or action.

1. Board Meeting Synopsis (July 9, 2019) Page
PROPOSED ACTION: Motion to Approve Consent Agenda
ACTION ITEMS:
1. Resolution #5-19, Approval of Lease Purchase Agreement with Umpqua
Bank*
(Documents provided under separate cover)
2. Ratify Agreement Between Teamsters Local 150 and Sacramento
Regional Fire/EMS Communications Center Page
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

1. Acknowledge Final Agreement Language Between Teamsters Local 856
And Sacramento Fire/EMS Communications Center Page

INFORMATION:

1. CAD Project Update* — (House)
2. Westnet Project Update* - (House)

CENTER REPORTS:
1. Medical Director (Dr. Mackey will provide a written report)*
CORRESPONDENCE:

None.

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND POTENTIAL PLACEMENT ON A FUTURE AGENDA:

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS:
ADJOURNMENT:

The next scheduled Board Meeting is August 27, 2019.

Location: 10545 Armstrong Ave, Mather, CA 95655-4102
Time: 9:00 a.m.

Distribution: Board Members, Alternates, and Chiefs

Posted at: 10230 Systems Parkway, Sacramento, CA 95827

www.srfecc.ca.gov
10545 Armstrong Ave, Mather, CA 95655-4102

DISABILITY INFORMATION:

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in
this meeting, please contact the Executive Director’s Office at (916) 228-3070. Notification at least 48

00123801.1

*INDICATES NO ATTACHMENT

8-78

79-150


http://www.srfecc.ca.gov/

hours prior to the meeting will enable the Center to make reasonable arrangements to ensure
accessibility to this meeting.

POSTING:

This is to certify that on August 12, 2019, | posted a copy of the agenda:
-at 10230 Systems Parkway, Sacramento, CA 95827
-on the Center’s website which is: www.srfecc.ca.gov
-10545 Armstrong Ave, Mather, CA 95655-4102

W%

Clerk of the Board

00123801.1

*INDICATES NO ATTACHMENT



GOVERNING BOARD MEETING

July 9, 2019
GOVERNING BOARD MEMBERS
Deputy Chief Niko King Sacramento Fire Department
Assistant Chief Tyler Wagaman Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District
Chief Mike McLaughlin Cosumnes Community Services District
Division Chief Chad Wilson Folsom Fire Department

GOVERNING BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT

COMMUNICATIONS CENTER MANAGEMENT
Marc Bentovoja Interim Executive Director
Diane House Deputy Director — Administration

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE

Kim Kingsley Bogard Counsel, SRFECC

Paul Zehnder Deputy Chief, Cosumnes Community Services District
Janice Parker Administrative Analyst, SRFECC

Jill Short Local 856 Representative

The meeting was called to order and roll call taken at 9:00 a.m.
1. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited
2. There were no agenda updates.

In Chairperson Costamagna’s absence (D/D King was in attendance as Sacramento Fire
Alternate Representative), Vice Chairperson McLaughlin “chaired” the meeting.

3. There was no public comment.
4. CLOSED SESSION:

Closed session was convened at 9:01 a.m.

1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR*
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6

District Negotiator(s) Lindsay Moore, Counsel

Kylee Soares, Deputy Director, Operations
Employee Organization(s) Teamsters Local 150

Teamsters Local 856

2. PERSONNEL ISSUES*
Pursuant to California Governing Code Section 54957

a. Discipline/Dismissal/Release (2 matters)
b. Evaluation of Performance: Interim Executive Director

3. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Anticipated Litigation*

a. Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9(b)
The Board will meet in closed session to discuss significant exposure to litigation.
Two (2) potential cases

b. Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9(a)
The Board will meet in closed session to discuss one (1) case of pending litigation.

July 9, 2019 Minutes



Sacramento Regional Public Safety Communications Center v. Tyler Technologies, Inc.
Case No. 2:18-cv-01792-KIM-KJIN

5. OPEN SESSION:
Open session was re-convened at 10:20 a.m.

The Board met in closed session and received an update regarding negotiations. Direction
was given; no action was taken.

During closed session the Board received an update regarding two separate personnel issues.

The Board voted in closed session to accept the settlement offered by Tyler/New World for
$1.95 million dollars. There is a confidentiality clause, as well as an agreement to destroy
Tyler/New World documents, to which we have agreed.

6. CONSENT AGENDA: Matters of routine approval including, but not limited to Board meeting synopsis, payroll
reports, referral of issues to committee, other consent matters. Consent Agenda is acted upon as one unit unless a
Board memb.er requests separate discussion and/or action.

1. Board Meeting(s) Synopsis (June 25, 2019 Workshop & Special Board Meeting)

A motion was made by Division Chief Wilson and seconded by Assistant Chief Wagaman to
approve the consent agenda.

AYES: Sacramento Fire Department, Sacramento Metro, Cosumnes Community
Services District, Folsom
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
Motion carried.
7. ACTION ITEMS:

1. Approve Contract Amendment(s) — Northrup Grumman Contract to Upgrade CAD System

a. Amendment No. 1: Additional Hardware and Related Scope of Work Revisions

b. Amendment No. 2: FitGap and Acceptance Criteria and Related Scope of Work
Revisions

C. Amendment No. 3: Updated Project Payment Milestones Schedule and Related Scope

of Work Revisions

D/D House gave some brief background in support of approving these three amendments prior
to the vote by the Board.

A motion was made by Assistant Chief Wagaman and seconded by Division Chief Wilson to
approve the above listed three contract amendments.

AYES: Sacramento Fire Department, Sacramento Metro, Cosumnes Community
Services District, Folsom
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

July 9, 2019 Minutes



Motion carried.

2. Approve Three-Party Escrow Agreement Between Center, Northrup Grumman and Iron
Mountain

D/D House explained that once the Northrup Grumman software has been installed a copy of
the software will be moved to Iron Mountain, as will any subsequent software updates.

A motion was made by Division Chief Wilson and seconded by Assistant Chief Wagaman to
approve the Three-Party Escrow Agreement Between the Center, Northrup Grumman and Iron
Mountain.

AYES: Sacramento Fire Department, Sacramento Metro, Cosumnes Community
Services District, Folsom
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
Motion carried.
8. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

1. Discussion/Approval of PAD revision — Two Part-Time Office Specialist Positions Converted
to One Full-Time Office Specialist

Upon approval of this revision the Center will begin the recruitment process to fill this full-time
Office Specialist position.

A motion was made by Assistant Chief Wagaman and seconded by Deputy Chief King to
approve the PAD revision as listed above.

AYES: Sacramento Fire Department, Sacramento Metro, Cosumnes Community
Services District, Folsom

NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Motion carried.

9. CENTER REPORTS:
There were no Center reports.

10. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS:

Assistant Chief Wagaman said he appreciates that with each subsequent Board meeting we
are facilitating forward progress. He is very confident in the future of the Center.

Division Chief Wilson concurred that he is pleased with the Center and the progress we are
making.

Deputy Chief King said it is good to see how well we are progressing.

Chief McLaughlin said he has been involved with the Board for 5-1/2 years and he truly
appreciates the comradery that exists with this current group of Board members.

July 9, 2019 Minutes



He also said he was so impressed with the great performance by the dispatch staff on the 4"
of July.

The meeting of the Governing Board was adjourned at 10:29 a.m.

The next scheduled Board Meeting is Tuesday, July 23, 2019, at 9:00 a.m., at Metro
Headquarters, 10545 Armstrong Ave — Rooms #320, Mather, CA 95655-4102.

Respectfully submitted,
Janice Parker
Clerk of the Board

Chris Costamagna, Chairperson Mike McLaughlin, Vice Chairperson

July 9, 2019 Minutes



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

SACRAMENTO REGIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS CENTER
and

TEAMSTERS LOCAL 150

July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2021

00122753.1






TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
1. PREAMBLE ...ttt ettt et et et e e e e e e et e e e e 1
1.1 PAITIES ...ttt et R et et et et n e e s e e ne e 1
1.2 AACCEPIANCE ...ttt r e 1
1.3 Members of the Bargaining UNit ..o 1
14 ENLIrE AQIEEIMENT .. .cuiiiiiieitieie ettt e b 1
1.5 INO DiISCHIMINATION ...t 1
2 UNION MEMBERSHIP .....ooiiiiii e 2
2.1 GENETAL ... 2
2.2 Bargaining Unit Member INformation ..o 2
2.3 Voluntary INfOrmation ... 2
2.4 SNOP STEWAITS. ...ttt 3
2.5 PaYrOIl DEAUCTION ...t 3
3. BULLETIN BOARDS ...t 4
4. CALLBACK .ttt ettt ettt b n et r e 5
4.1 DEFINITION ...ttt 5
4.2 (O] ] oT=T 0 S7: 1 [0 o SRRSO RPRRR 5
4.3 AdJACENT 10 8 SHITE ... s 5
5. DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS ...ttt ettt 6
5.1 DETINITION ...ttt 6
5.2 Commencement Of INVESLIGAtION ..........ccooeiiiiieiere e 6
5.3 Notice of Proposed DisCiplinary ACLION ..........coovviereiiieiie e 6
54 Binding ArDITratiION .......oiiiiiiee e 6
55 Retention Of RECOIUS. .....c..oiiiiiie s 7
6. CENTER RIGHTS ...ttt 8
7. EDUCATION REIMBURSEMENT .......oiiiiiiiiiee e 9
7.1 TUILION, BOOKS, BLC. ...t 9
7.2 JOD REIALEA. ...t 9
7.3 Eligibility for ReIMDUISEMENt .........cviiiiiieieeee s 9
7.4 FIEX TIME ottt 9
7.5 EdUCAtION INCENTIVES ..o 9
8. EMPLOYEE RIGHTS ...t 11

00122753.1

10



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

00122753.1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

(Continued)
Page
LEAVES ettt et R e e Rt e Rt e Rt et et e Rt e nt e e ne e 12
9.1 FUNEIAI LBAVE. ... .ecuieiieiie ettt ettt s e e ne e teaneenne s 12
9.2 JUIY DULY LEAVE ... 13
9.3 SICK LBAVE ...ttt bbbt e 14
9.4 o 1[0 o SRR PTRPP 15
9.5 FMLA/JCFRA LBAVE ...t 18
9.6 PEISONAL ...ttt ne s 19
9.7 Pregnancy Disability Leave (“PDL”) ...ccccciiiiriiiieiie e 19
9.8 UNION TIME Off ... e e ne s 21
9.9 In Case of a RIF or Exercise of Management RIghts ..........ccccoiriiiiinininiiiinenne 21
0.10  RELUMN TO WOTK ....eeieieee sttt ettt e naenneeneenas 21
0.11  IMIITANY ettt be e enea 22
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE .......coooiiiiiieee s 23
101 DEFINITIONS. .. citiiiiitieiiieie sttt e st bt et e et e b e e st e nbeaneens 23
10.2  PrOCEUUIE ...ttt bttt e e bbb e beeneenbeeneesbeeneenneaneens 23
HEALTH INSURANCE AND OTHER BENEFITS.......ccooiiieeeeeeeeeee e, 25
11.1  Medical INSUFaNCe PIANS .......ccooiiiieiiee e 25
11.2  Other BENETITS ....uiiiiiicic ettt e este e e e eneennean 25
11.3  Center’s Maximum Monthly Contribution .............ccooooeieiiiiieneee e, 25
HOLIDAYS. ettt ettt et b bbb et et et et et et et e e et et e e et e e 26
12,1 LISt OF HONAAYS. ...c.eiiiieeieiiieie et 26
122 COMPENSALION ©eutiitieitieiie ettt sttt be et e e be s s e sbeeneesbeeseenreeneenneas 26
12,3 ENGIDHILY .o 27
ON-CALL STATUS .ottt bbbttt nn e n e 28
131 SIGN-UP ettt ettt et et e e e e 28
T © 1 B = || == T o USRS 28
133 COMPENSALION ...ttt e et e s et e e e e e e e e et e s e e eneeneas 28
13.4  Day Shift/Night SRIft........ooiii e 28
13.5  Three Month INTEIVAIS.........ccvciiiiee e 29
13.6  SHITE TIAOES ..c.viitieiiitie ittt bbb bt nne e b s 29
OVERTIME ...ttt 30
141 ACVANCE APPIOVAL ..oiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt nae s 30
L4.2 LS A ittt 30
14.3  AdJUStEd WOIK HOUIS ... 30
Local 150
i

11



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

00122753.1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

(Continued)
Page
DU T -0 F - C L A S S P A ..o e ettt e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e eaes 31
15.1  Higher ClasSifiCatioN ..........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiese e 31
TV A N Y1 1] TR UURRRRRRRT 31
PAYROLL DEDUGCTIONS ...coitiiii ittt ettt ettt et e et s aseb vttt e e s s s sssesbraeteeeesssasssrrrrereeesssnanes 32
PROBATIONARY PERIOD ....oooii ittt ettt ettt as ettt e e e s s s s bbraet e s e e s ssnnanrareeeaessnnnans 33
0 SO 1 11 A | I 2T o Lo TR 33
17.2  EXEENSION OF PrODATION.....ciieeeeeiiiee sttt e e ettt e e e e s s sttt e e e s sessnrrrreeeesssnanans 33
REDUCTIONS IN FORCE ...t e e et e e e e e e e e e e e eeaeeeanans 34
18.1  IMEEE AN CONTEI .ot e e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e e eeeeeaeeeanans 34
18.2  BOAIT DECISION. . .eeeeeeeeeee et e e e e et e e e e e e e e et eeeeeeeeeaeeneeeeeeeeeanans 34
18,3 PrOCEUUIES. ..ot ettt e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeaae e eeeeeeeeeaaannnneeeeeeeeenaanes 34
REHIRES ..ottt ettt et et e e e ettt eeeessaa s b b eeeeeeeesaaassbbseeeeeesseassbaeseeeeesssannnnes 36
191 ERQIDHITY coovieeieiee et 36
19,2 SEIHOIILY ..vvetiitieiti ettt sttt b et b e be e s et e e n e s b e entenreeneenre s 36
19.3  COMPENSALION ..uviiviiitieiie ittt sttt et be et s e e besre e beeseesbeaneesbeeneenreas 36
19.4  Vacation And SICK LBAVE ... .ottt e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e aeeeeaans 36
19.5  Probationary PEriOq .........cc.couiiiioiiiiieieieieee et 36
RETIREMENT PLAN .ottt e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aeenees 37
20.1  PERS CONIIBULION. ...ttt e e e e e e e e ees 37
20.2 1959 SUNVIVOL BENETIES ..ooiiieiii ittt ettt e et e e e s s s e e e e e e e e s s s aar b e reeeees 37
20.3  Employer Paid Member Contributions (EPMC)........ccccooviiiiiiininniiie s 37
20.4  Sharing AdditioNal COSES .......ciueiiiieiiiie i 37
20.5 Center Contribution to Retiree Health Benefit Premiums .......oooccvvvvvieeei e 38
20.6  Sick Leave Redemption Credit. ... 39
RULES AND REGULATIONS ... ettt e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e naan 40
SAVINGS CLAUSE ... e ettt e et e e e et e e e e e e e e e e eeaes 41
i

12



(Continued)
23. SENIORITY Lottt
23.1  SENIONILY LISES ..eovieiiiiiiieieieie e
23.2  Additions to the Seniority LiStS .......cccooevriiieiiiiieceeeeeeee
23.3  Adjustment of Seniority Dates.........cccoeveieieicieieeeeeeeeens
24. SHIFT BID ..ottt
24.1  Annual ShIft Bid ......oooviieiiiiecicesee e
25. TERM OF AGREEMENT AND REOPENERS
25.1  TOIMN e
25.2  REOPENEIS ...ttt
26. TESTING RELEASE TIME .....oooiiiiiiiiieeee e
27. TRAINING ..ot
28. UNIFORMS ...t
28.1  OPLIONS...ctieieiiieiieieeie ettt
28.2  INItIAl HIE..oveiieiee e
28.3  ANNUAl AHTOWANCE .....c.oouiiiiiiieie e
28.4  PACRES ..o s
29. WAGES ...ttt
29.1  Salary Schedule.........cocooiiiiiiiiiee e
29.2  Night Shift Differential ............cccccoveiiiiiiniieie s
29.3  LONQEVILY c.ooiiieiiiiieie ettt nne s
29.4  Advancement/Placement..........ccoiviiieiiniiniinie s
29.5  Other Than Shift-Based ASSIGNMENTS...........ccovvvrieienieesieiienenns
29.6  Compensatory Time Off (CTO)......ccevvviviininniiie e
29.7  Processing Payment of Wages .........ccooeveieneneneneie e
29.8  Daylight Savings Time Schedule Adjustments...........c.c.ccevenenn
30. WORKWEEK ...ttt
30.1  DefiNItIONS. .....ooviiiieiieiiereee s
30.2  WOrK SChedule.........cooveiiiieiiiiee e
APPENDIX A-1
GRIEVANCE FORM — STEP ONE .......c.cooiiiiiiiieieineee e
00122753.1 iv

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Local 150

13



TABLE OF CONTENTS

(Continued)
Page

APPENDIX A-2

GRIEVANCE APPEAL FORM — STEP TWO ..ot 55
APPENDIX B

INSURANCE AND OTHER BENEFITS......ooiiiieeeeeeee s 56
APPENDIX C

SALARY RANGES — DISPATCH SUPERVISOR .......c.cooiiiiiiiiiecieeeeee e 59
APPENDIX D

SENIORITY LISTS ..ttt e et 60
LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

16-HOUR MAXIMUDM ...ttt se e eneeneas 61
SIDE LETTER

NEW EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION. ...ttt 62
00122753.1

%

14



15



1. PREAMBLE

11

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

00122753.1

Parties

This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is made and entered into between the
Sacramento Regional Public Safety Communications Center, hereinafter referred to
as “Center,” and Teamsters Local 150, hereinafter referred to as “Local 150" or
“Union,” in accordance with the provisions of California Government Code Section
3500 et seq. and Center Resolution #5-81 pertaining to employer-employee relations.
A copy of Resolution #5-81 is posted at the work site.

Acceptance

This MOU shall not be binding on either party until accepted on behalf of the Center
by motion or resolution of the Governing Board and on behalf of Local 150 by
majority vote of the members of Local 150, as evidenced by the signature of an
officer of Local 150 on this Agreement.

Members of the Bargaining Unit

The agreements contained herein shall pertain only to employees in the classification
of Dispatch Supervisor.

Entire Agreement

It is the intent of the parties that this MOU sets forth all agreements and
understandings between the Center and Local 150 pertaining to matters within the
scope of representation. The Center retains the right to promulgate reasonable rules
and regulations, as deemed appropriate by the Center, subject to the right of
recognized employee organizations to consult with respect to any such rules and
regulations which directly affect wages, hours or other terms and conditions of
employment.

No Discrimination

The parties to this MOU agree that neither shall discriminate against any person in
the administration of this MOU on account of race, color, religion, sex or national
origin or any other basis as prohibited by federal and/or state law.

Local 150

16



2. UNION MEMBERSHIP
2.1 General

2.1.1 No person employed in a bargaining unit position is required to be a member
of the Union or pay an agency shop service fee to the Union.

2.1.2 The provisions of this Article (2) shall be in effect during the term of this
MOU and during any mutually agreed upon extension of that term.

2.2 Bargaining Unit Member Information

2.2.1 New Unit Member

The following information concerning new bargaining unit members shall, as
permitted by law, be delivered electronically to the Local 150 shop steward
no later than thirty (30) days after the unit member’s date of hire in a
bargaining unit position:

1. Name

2. Job Title

3. Phone Numbers: work, home and personal cellular
(voluntary per Section 2.3 below)

4. Personal email address, if one is on file with the Center
(voluntary per Section 2.3 below)

5. Home address

(voluntary per Section 2.3 below)

2.2.2 Existing Bargaining Unit Member Information

a. On or about March 1, July 1, and November 1 of each calendar year,
the following information shall be delivered electronically to the
Local 150 shop steward for all bargaining unit members:

1. Name

2. Job Title

3. Phone Numbers: work, home and personal cellular
(voluntary per Section 2.3 below)

4. Personal email address, if one is on file with the Center
(voluntary per Section 2.3 below)

5. Home address

(voluntary per Section 5.6 below)

2.3 Voluntary Information

Upon written request of any unit member, the Center shall NOT disclose the unit
member’s home address, home telephone number, personal cellular phone number or
personal email address to:

Local 150

00122753.1

17



2.3.1 Local 150; or
2.3.2 any other person/organization (except as required by law).

2.4 Shop Stewards

The Union shall select one (1) unit member to serve as Shop Steward and one (1) unit
member to serve as the Alternate Shop Steward. The Union will keep the Center
advised, in writing at all times, of the identity of the unit members selected.

25 Payroll Deduction

Union dues may be paid to the Union through payroll deductions.

Local 150

00122753.1

18



BULLETIN BOARDS

Local 150 may utilize one (1) Center-provided bulletin board, not to exceed three feet by four
feet (3' x 4') in size, in the Center for the purpose of communicating normal and usual Union
business to the membership. Specific placement of the bulletin board shall be determined by
the Center management. The Local 150 unit representative shall be responsible for
maintaining such a board.

Local 150
00122753.1

19



4, CALLBACK
41 Definition

Call-back is unscheduled work. Call-back work occurs when either a unit member is
(1) called back to work at the Center after completion of his/her shift and departure
from the work site, or (2) assigned to perform actual (not simulated or voluntary
training) dispatch service off Center property. Scheduled meetings, training, classes,
presentations, etc., are not call-back situations.

4.2 Compensation

4.2.1 A unit member who is called back to work shall be compensated at time and
one-half for a minimum of four (4) hours per call back.

4.2.2 If four (4) hours of work are not required of the unit member, the unit
member may request to leave earlier. If approved by the Shift Supervisor, the
unit member may leave and will only be compensated for actual hours
worked.

4.2.3 A unit member who is contacted by either the Executive Director or the
Deputy Director Operations, while in an off-duty status, may submit a time
card for a minimum of one-half (%2) hour of straight-time pay provided the
contact:
4.2.3.1 required an immediate response;

4.2.3.2 was regarding official Center business and utilized the unit
member’s expertise;

4.2.3.3 was not the result of the unit member’s failure to complete work or
to leave a status report for the Center.

4.3 Adjacent to a Shift

This provision shall not apply to situations where a unit member is directed to report
early for a unit member’s assigned shift or held over. In such cases, compensation
shall be for the actual time worked at time and one-half.

Local 150

00122753.1

20



5.

00122753.1

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

Definition

The Center may reprimand, suspend, discharge, or otherwise discipline unit members
for cause. Counseling of unit members with respect to performance deficiencies and
similar matters, whether oral or documented, shall be considered informal discipline
and shall not be subject to Sections 5.2 through 5.4.

Commencement of Investigation

5.2.1 Except in extraordinary circumstances, a unit member shall be informed
within twenty-one (21) calendar days of the initiation of an investigation that
involves them.

5.2.2 The time period shall commence when the Deputy Director Operations or the
Executive Director knew, or should reasonably have known, of the facts
which resulted in the investigation.

Notice of Proposed Disciplinary Action

5.3.1 Notice of Proposed Disciplinary Action shall be provided to the unit member
in writing and shall include:

5.3.1.1 astatement of the nature of the proposed disciplinary action;
5.3.1.2 the effective date of the proposed action;
5.3.1.3 astatement of the reasons for the discipline; and

5.3.1.4 the time and place at which he or she may answer the Notice of
Proposed Disciplinary Action.

5.3.2 A duplicate of the Notice shall be sent to the Local 150 Business Agent.

Binding Arbitration

In the event the Center determines to proceed with the proposed discipline after the
meeting set forth in Section 5.3.1.4, Local 150 may request binding arbitration
pursuant to Step 3 of the grievance procedure. Such request shall be made within
twenty-one (21) calendar days of service of the Center’s determination to proceed
with discipline.

Local 150

21



00122753.1

5.5

Retention of Records

5.5.1

5.5.2

If a unit member who is the subject of proposed disciplinary action presents
evidence which results in a withdrawal of the Notice of Proposed Disciplinary
Action, all reference to that Notice shall be removed from the unit member’s
personnel file.

If requested by the unit member, in writing, material related to informal
discipline (oral or documented counseling) previously imposed will be
removed twelve (12) months after final resolution. Material related to formal
discipline (written reprimand, suspension, discharge) previously imposed will
be removed twenty-four (24) months after final resolution. This shall not
apply in the following circumstances:

5.5.2.1 any other discipline has been imposed in the intervening months.

5.5.2.2 the prior discipline related to a federal or state law (e.g. sexual
harassment, racial discrimination, etc.).

Local 150

22



6. CENTER RIGHTS

The Center retains all rights and functions of management specifically provided for in
Section 5 of Center Resolution #5-81 and nothing in this MOU is intended nor shall be
construed to limit, other than as a matter of procedure, the Center’s ultimate ability to
exercise its management rights.

Local 150

00122753.1

23



7. EDUCATION REIMBURSEMENT

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

00122753.1

Tuition, Books, etc.

The Center will reimburse unit members for tuition, books and educational fees in
accordance with this Article.

Job Related

All course work or training must be job-related and pre-approved. The determination
of job-related is not grievable. A denial, however, may be appealed from the Deputy
Director Operations to the Executive Director. The decision of the Executive
Director shall be final.

Eligibility for Reimbursement

7.3.1 There shall be a cap of Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars ($750.00) per unit
member per fiscal year.

7.3.2 The Center will reimburse, on completion of the course or training, provided
the unit member either (1) received a grade of “C” or better; or (2) received a
“pass” if the course was graded pass/fail.

7.3.3 The Center will reimburse unit members for costs associated with Center-
directed training, seminars or classes in accordance with adopted Center

policy.
Flex Time

Flex time may be utilized, with Center approval, provided it does not cause a back fill
with overtime.

Education Incentives

7.5.1 For a unit member to earn the total allowable educational incentive, he/she
must have registered, earned and obtained their degree through a regionally
accredited college or university (WASC or equivalent). The submittals must
include a copy of the diploma from the accrediting college. Each submittal
will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis.

° Unit members who possess an Associate’s degree from an accredited
college or university (WASC or equivalent) shall receive one percent
(1%) of base pay.

° Unit members who possess a Bachelor’s degree from an accredited

college or university shall receive two percent (2%) of base pay.

Local 150

24



° Unit members who possess a current Emergency Medical Dispatch
Quality Improvement (EMD-Q) certificate from a Center-recognized
institution shall receive one percent (1%) of base pay. It shall be the
responsibility of the unit member to assure that a current certificate is
provided to the Center designee prior to expiration.

7.5.2 The stipends in 7.5.1 are cumulative (e.g. a unit member has the ability to
earn up to four percent (4%) of base pay as an education incentive.)

Local 150

00122753.1

10
25



8. EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

Notwithstanding the provisions of this MOU, unit members shall retain all rights provided for
in Government Code section 3500 et seq. and Section 4 of Resolution #5-81.

Local 150

00122753.1

11
26



9. LEAVES

9.1 Funeral Leave

9.1.1 Leave for Family Members

9111

9112

9.113

9114

9.1.15

A unit member assigned to a shift shall be eligible for the lesser
period of either five (5) consecutive days or three (3) consecutive
shifts of leave without loss of pay for the purpose of arranging for
and/or attending the funeral of a member of the immediate family.
If the funeral is to be postponed (i.e. will not occur within seven (7)
calendar days after the death), the unit member will advise the
Center and the leave may be deferred to coincide with the actual
funeral ceremony.

The unit member shall list the relationship to the deceased on the
leave request form. For the purposes of this section, immediate
family includes the unit member’s spouse or domestic partner and
the child, mother, father, step-mother, step-father, aunt, uncle,
grandmother, grandfather, sister, brother, daughter-in-law, son-in-
law of the unit member or the unit member’s spouse or domestic
partner. Also included is any person permanently domiciled in the
unit member’s household.

CTO/Vacation and/or leaves of absence will also be available if
additional time away from work is required and can be
accommodated by the Center.

Proof of the date of the funeral, acceptable to the Center, may be
required.

Unit members not assigned to a shift shall be eligible for up to five
(5) consecutive calendar days of leave, commencing no later than
seven (7) calendar days after the death, without loss of pay for the
purpose of arranging for and/or attending the funeral of a member
of the immediate family.

9.1.2 Leave for Others

If a unit member has a funeral to attend of someone outside the defined
immediate family, CTO/vacation time outside the normal vacation rules as
outlined in Section 9.4 will also be available if the absence can be
accommodated by the Center. Proof of the date of the funeral, acceptable to
the Center, may be required.

00122753.1

Local 150

12
27



00122753.1

9.2

9.13

Notice

The unit member should make every attempt possible to notify management
when the use of funeral leave is anticipated.

Jury Duty Leave

9.21

9.2.2

9.2.3

Summons for Service

Unit members summoned for trial jury service in either State or Federal court
will be released from scheduled duty without loss of pay for those periods
during which they are required to be present at the courthouse.

Notice to Center

A unit member who is required to report for jury duty shall provide Center
management with a copy of the notice promptly upon receipt. Management,
after consultation with the unit member, shall contact the Jury Commissioner
and arrange for a mutually satisfactory time for the unit member to satisfy the
jury service obligation.

Temporary Reassignment

For the week in which their jury service obligation is scheduled, at the
Center’s option, the unit member may be reassigned to days with either an
eight (8) or a ten (10) hour schedule (Monday through Friday). This day
assignment may be performing dispatch duties on a day shift or may be to a
special project. If the unit member is empaneled, and jury service extends
beyond the original week, his/her modified assignment shall also be extended
until the end of the week in which the trial is completed.

9.2.3.1 A unit member scheduled to work on the Sunday before a week of
jury duty may elect to work a full or partial shift, only with the
approval of the Deputy Director Operations and in compliance with
Section 14.3.

9.2.3.2 A unit member may choose to work on the Saturday following a full
week of jury duty only with the approval of the Deputy Director
Operations and in compliance with Section 14.3.

9.2.3.3 Each unit member must, however, work at least their scheduled
hours (either thirty-six (36) or forty-eight (48)) during a week of
jury service as to not affect their pay.

9.2.3.4 Consistent with Paragraphs 9.2.3.1, 9.2.3.2, and 9.2.3.3, the goal is
to transition the unit member back to his/her normal assignment at
the earliest opportunity following completion of jury service.

Local 150

13
28



00122753.1

9.24

9.2.3.,5 In appropriate circumstances, this may result in the temporary
transfer of one (1) or more unit members from the day shift to
accommodate the jury duty unit member’s temporary reassignment.

Return to Work

If a unit member has reported to the courthouse, and is released from jury
service before 2:00 p.m., he/she shall return to work. A unit member who
does not wish to return to work may call Center management and request
permission to utilize vacation/CTO.

9.3 Sick Leave

93.1

9.3.2

9.3.3

Definition

Sick Leave, as used in this MOU, shall be defined as absence from work
without loss of pay because of the unit member’s non-service related illness
or injury.

9.3.1.1 Accrued sick leave may be utilized in the case of illness of a minor
child, or a parent (as defined in Labor Code Section 233), or any of
the following persons who are living in the unit member’s
household: spouse, domestic partner, or grandparent.

Entitlement

9.3.2.1 Each unit member shall earn ten and one-half (10%) hours of sick
leave per month of service.

9.3.2.2 Unit members shall be entitled to accumulate sick leave on an
unlimited basis.

Verification

9.3.3.1 In accordance with the schedule set forth below, a unit member who
is absent because of sick leave shall furnish a letter from their
doctor stating that they have been examined and, in the doctor’s
professional opinion, are able to return to work.

a) The letter shall further state whether the unit member has
been unconditionally released to return to normal duties; if
not unconditionally released, the doctor shall specifically
list any applicable restrictions.

b) Should any restrictions be placed upon the unit member’s
return, the Center shall have sole authority to determine
whether the unit member shall return to work and under
what conditions.

Local 150

14
29



00122753.1

9.3.3.2

9.3.3.3

1) For unit members assigned to shifts, after six (6)
consecutive shifts.

2) For unit members assigned to non-shift work, after
five (5) consecutive work days.

The Center’s Policy on Excessive Use of Sick Leave will be located
within a Center-provided Employee Handbook or Policy &
Procedure manual developed through “Meet and Confer” with
Center employee units.
As an incentive to promote appropriate use of sick leave, unit
members who have rendered a minimum of five (5) continuous
years of service with the Center at the time of retirement or
resignation may choose to be compensated for the cash value of
existing accrued sick leave based on the following schedule:
Years of % of Cash Value
Continuous Service (at straight time)
5-10 25%
11-15 35%
16 or more 50%
Notes:

This shall not apply in the case of a separation for cause.

Any sick leave compensated pursuant to this provision shall
not be eligible for conversion to Section 20965 Credit for
Unused Sick Leave (see Section 20.6).

9.3.4 Wellness Incentive

9.3.4.1 Unit members who use no sick leave in a period of six (6),

continuous months shall be entitled to receive a wellness certificate
to take one (1) workday off with pay.

9.3.4.1.1 The six (6) month measuring period shall be six (6)
months immediately preceding the date the request is
submitted (see 9.3.4.2. below).

9.34.1.2 This day must be taken within twelve (12) calendar
months after issuance of the certificate.

9.3.4.1.3 Usage shall be in half (*2) day or full day increments.

Local 150

15
30




00122753.1

9.4

9.3.4.1.4 The certificate shall have no monetary value and is not
transferable. The use and approval of the certificate
shall be in the same manner as vacation pursuant to
Article 9.4.

Vacation

94.1

9.4.2

9.4.3

Seniority Date

For purposes of Paragraph 9.4.2., “seniority date” shall be defined the same
asitisin Article 23.1.1 (Seniority - Seniority Lists - List #1).

Entitlement

Each unit member shall be credited, on a monthly basis and in accordance
with the seniority date schedule set forth below, the following hours of annual
leave (vacation). In order to actually take vacation time, an employee must
have worked at least six (6) months unless special circumstances exist.

Months Annual Monthly
1...... 36 ?gsfmg 8 hours
37...... 72 (112(? s'?ﬁ?tg 10 hours
3. 108 (11424 s'?ﬁ?tg 12 hours
109...... 144 (1ff s?ﬁ?tg 14 hours
145.. ... over (11962321?%3 16 hours

Annual Vacation Bid

9.4.3.1 Each unit member assigned to twelve (12) hour shifts shall, by
December 1st, bid at least one (1) consecutive work week of
vacation. Each additional bid, in excess of one (1) work week, must
be in full consecutive work week amounts (e.g., 36, 72, 108 hours).

9.4.3.2 Unit members assigned to other than twelve (12) hour shifts shall
bid at least one (1) consecutive work week of vacation. Each
additional bid, in excess of one (1) work week, must be in full
consecutive work week amounts.

Local 150

16
31



00122753.1

9.4.4

9.4.5

9.4.6

9.4.7

9.4.8

Requests During the Year

9.4.4.1 A request to utilize vacation during the year shall be processed on a
first-received basis.

9.4.4.2 The Center shall not be required to grant, but shall not unreasonably
deny, any request.

Cancellation of Vacation

9.45.1 Cancellation of vacation by a unit member may cause the provisions
of Paragraph 9.4.6.2 to apply.

9.4.5.2 In appropriate circumstances, the Center may cancel vacation to
maintain operational readiness. Prior to doing so, the Center will
attempt to temporarily reassign a unit member to the shift in need.

Annual Leave Bank

9.4.6.1 No unit member may have credited to their account, at any time,
more than twice their current year’s accrual rate of vacation (e.g., a
unit member with zero (0) to thirty-six (36) months of service could
have one hundred ninety-two hours (192) credited to their account).

9.4.6.2 If a unit member has accumulated the maximum permitted, vacation
accrual shall be suspended and the unit member shall accrue no
additional vacation until the unit member’s vacation accumulation
is less than the maximum.

9.4.6.3 Should the Center cancel a unit member’s scheduled vacation, the
maximum permitted accrual for the next year may be exceeded by
the number of hours cancelled.

Compensation Upon Separation

At the time of separation for any reason, a unit member shall be compensated
at the unit member’s then current base hourly rate, for all vacation earned,
accumulated and not used up to and including the effective date of separation.

Prior Approval

No unit member shall take vacation without prior written approval from the
Deputy Director Operations or the Executive Director. However, the on-duty
supervisor may approve vacation time for himself/herself during that shift
when staffing criteria allow for time off to be taken and no call back is
needed.

Local 150

17
32



9.4.9 Vacation Redemption

Once each calendar year, a unit member may elect to receive compensation
from the Center for up to seventy-two (72) hours of accrued and unused
vacation. To receive compensation, the unit member shall comply with the
following requirements:

9.49.1 after the vacation redemption, the unit member must still have
seventy-two (72) hours of accrued and unused vacation in his/her
account;

9.4.9.2 he/she must have made an irrevocable, written notification to the
Center (by the 15" of the calendar month preceding the month in
which she/he intends to complete the vacation redemption) of the
number of vacation hours to be redeemed;

9.4.9.3 he/she must have used, in the twelve (12) months immediately
preceding the vacation redemption, not less than one (1) weeks’
worth of vacation hours (may be thirty-six (36) hours or forty (40)
hours);

9.4.9.4 his/her accrued vacation hours shall be reduced by the number of
hours for which he/she is compensated. Compensation may be
requested in a separate check or included in the unit member’s
regular monthly pay check.

9.5 FMLA/CFRA Leave

Other leaves granted by the Center pursuant to this MOU may satisfy (in full or in
part) the Center’s obligations under those statutes.

9.5.1 The Center shall provide each eligible unit member with leave as required by
the California Family Rights Act (CFRA) and Federal Family and Medical
Leave Act (FMLA).

9.5.1.1 Such leave, if required, is without pay.

9.5.1.2 Unit members on this leave of absence (maximum of twelve (12)
weeks) shall:

o accrue seniority and shall continue to be covered under the
Center’s Health, Dental, Vision, Life and LTD programs
with the Center making its normal contribution toward such
coverage.

. NOT accrue additional sick leave and/or vacation.

9.5.2 Other leaves granted by the Center pursuant to this MOU may satisfy (in full
or in part) the Center’s obligations under those statutes.

Local 150

00122753.1

18
33



00122753.1

9.6

9.7

9.6.1

9.6.2

9.6.3

9.6.4

Personal

Unit members who have completed the initial probationary period shall be
eligible, at the sole discretion of the Center, for an unpaid personal leave of
absence for a period not to exceed four (4) months. This leave of absence
shall not be used for the purpose of seeking or being employed elsewhere.

Unit members serving a promotional probationary period shall, if the leave is
granted, have the probationary period extended.

During this leave, the Center shall not refill the unit member’s position on a
permanent basis.

Unit members on a personal leave of absence shall not accrue seniority or any
other benefits. Subject to lawful rules of the insurance provider, unit
members may continue any insurance benefit by paying the Center for the full
cost of the monthly premiums at least one (1) month in advance.

Pregnancy Disability Leave (“PDL™)

9.7.1

9.7.2

9.7.3

Eligibility

All female unit members, regardless of length of service with the Center,
shall be entitled to take a pregnancy disability leave if they are actually
disabled by pregnancy.

Length of Leave

9.7.2.1 Leave of up to four (4) months may be taken, as needed, for the
period(s) of time a unit member is actually disabled by pregnancy.

o Four (4) months means the number of days the unit member
normally would work within that four (4) month period.

o For example, a full-time unit member who works five (5)
eight-hour days per week would be entitled to up to eighty-
eight (88) working days of leave, based on an average of
twenty-two (22) working days per month for four (4) months.

9.7.2.2 A unit member who works fewer than five (5) days a week, or eight
(8) hours per day, receives leave on a pro rata or proportional basis.

Intermittent Leave

The leave may be taken intermittently or in a reduced work schedule when
medically advisable, as determined by the health care provider of the unit
member.

Local 150

19
34



00122753.1

9.74

9.7.5

9.7.6

9.7.7

9.7.8

9.7.9

Compensation

The leave is unpaid. A unit member may elect, however, to use accrued sick
or vacation leave during the otherwise unpaid portion of the leave. The
Center may require a unit member to use accrued sick leave during the
otherwise unpaid portion of the leave.

Benefits

During the leave, a unit member will receive Center-paid benefits at the same
level as if the unit member were not on leave. A unit member will continue
to accrue seniority during the leave period.

Notice

A unit member must provide the Center at least thirty (30) days’ advanced
written notice before leave is to begin. If thirty (30) days’ advance notice is
not practicable, such as because of a lack of knowledge of approximately
when leave will be required to begin, a change in circumstances, or a medical
emergency, notice must be given as soon as practicable.

Medical Certification of Need for Leave

The Center will require medical certification of the need for leave. The
medical certificate should contain:

9.7.7.1 The date on which the unit member became disabled due to
pregnancy;

9.7.7.2 The probable duration of the period or periods of disability; and

9.7.7.3 An explanatory statement that because of the disability, the unit
member is either unable to work at all or is unable to perform any
one (1) or more of the essential functions of her position, without
undue risk to herself or to other persons, or to the successful
completion of her pregnancy.

Release to Return to Work After PDL

The Center will require a unit member to obtain a release to return to work
from her health care provider prior to returning to work.

Reinstatement After PDL

A unit member will be reinstated in accordance with FEHC § 7291.9.

Local 150

20
35



00122753.1

9.8

9.9

9.10

Union Time Off

9.8.1 The Union may request that a representative be granted leave from duty for
Union business (e.g. attending labor conventions and education conferences).

9.8.1.1 The Center shall grant such request if the leave does not
unreasonably interfere with or disrupt the workings of the Center.

9.8.1.2 The Union shall reimburse the Center for the wages of the unit
member’s release time.

9.8.2 A Union Representative will be granted reasonable release time for the
processing of grievances and meetings with Center management on matters
directly related to the Center employer/employee relations.

9.8.3 In conjunction with a scheduled meet and confer session, one (1) unit member
shall be granted reasonable release time, without loss of compensation or
other benefits, to participate in the meet and confer session. The period of
time shall be for the meet and confer session, any caucus during the session,
and reasonable travel time from the unit member’s duty location to the
scheduled meeting location.

9.8.4 Not more than one hundred twenty (120) hours in any calendar year may be
used for the purposes set forth in paragraphs 9.8.1, 9.8.2 and 9.8.3.

In Case of a RIF or Exercise of Management Rights

Notwithstanding any of the above, the Center shall not be prohibited from
reorganizing, instituting a reduction in force or otherwise exercising its management
rights, except that unit members on approved leaves of absence shall preserve all
rights otherwise available to Center employees.

9.9.1 When a reduction in force (RIF) results in a separation from the Center, the
Seniority List citing Date of Hire for all floor personnel shall be utilized.
When a reduction in force results in a demotion of a Dispatch Supervisor,
“List #1” citing Promotion Date shall be utilized.

Return to Work

9.10.1  Unit members who do not return to work prior to the expiration of the unit
member’s leave of absence shall be terminated from employment.

9.10.2  Notwithstanding paragraph 9.10.1, unit members who are unable to return
to work due to a work-related injury or illness, for which the Center has
paid workers’ compensation benefits, shall be eligible for priority rehire
with credit for prior service for an indefinite period of time provided a
position exists for which the unit member is qualified.

Local 150

21
36



9.11 Military

Unit members shall be eligible for leaves of absence for military duty in accordance
with the requirements of applicable State and Federal law.

Local 150

00122753.1

22
37



10.

00122753.1

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

10.1

10.2

Definitions

10.1.1

10.1.2

10.1.3

10.1.4

10.1.5

10.1.6

Grievance. The term “grievance” as used in this MOU is limited to a
complaint or request of a unit member or Local 150 which involves the
interpretation or application of, or compliance with the provisions of this
MOU which adversely affects the unit member.

Grievant. A “grievant” is the unit member or Local 150 who files the
grievance.

Time Limits. Grievances not presented within the time limits established
for each step of this procedure shall not be considered. However, any time
limit set forth in this section (10) may be extended by mutual written
agreement between the Center and the Union.

Presentation. A unit member and/or Local 150 representative may present a
grievance while on duty, provided such presentations and discussions do
not disrupt Center operations and are kept to a reasonable minimum. If the
Center declines to schedule a timely-requested grievance presentation
meeting, because the meeting would disrupt Center operations, time limits
will be extended to allow for a later presentation.

Day. A “day” is a calendar day.

Informal. While not required, unit members are strongly encouraged to
attempt informal resolution of all potential grievances.

Procedure

All grievances as defined herein shall be processed in accordance with this procedure.
Local 150 may refuse to represent a grievant, and the Center may refuse to consider a
grievance, in those circumstances where the aggrieved party has not followed this
procedure.

10.2.1

10.2.2

STEP 1. Within thirty (30) days of the acts and/or omissions giving rise to
the grievance or within thirty (30) days of time the unit member or Local
150 should reasonably have been aware of the acts and/or omissions which
gave rise to the grievance, the grievance shall be presented in writing to the
Deputy Director Operations. If the grievance is not resolved within fifteen
(15) days of the date on which it is first presented at Step 1, the grievant
may proceed to Step 2.

STEP 2. Within fifteen (15) days of the written determination at Step 1, or
within fifteen (15) days of the date the written determination was due at
Step 1 if none was issued, the grievance may be presented to the Executive
Director or his/her designee on the form provided for this purpose and
incorporated herein by reference as Appendix A-2. The Executive Director

Local 150

23
38



00122753.1

10.2.3

or his/her designee shall conduct such investigation as he/she deems
appropriate and shall issue a written determination within thirty (30) days of
the date on which the grievance is first presented at Step 2. If the Executive
Director or his/her designee fails to issue a written determination within the
prescribed period of time, or if the determination is not satisfactory to the
grievant, he/she may request that the matter be submitted to binding
arbitration.

STEP 3. A request for binding arbitration by Local 150 at Step 3 of this
procedure shall be made in writing to the Executive Director or his/her
designee within twenty-one (21) days of the date on which the grievant
received a copy of the written determination at Step 2. An arbitrator may
be selected by mutual agreement between the parties. Should the parties
fail to agree upon an arbitrator, they shall make a Joint request to the State
Mediation and Conciliation Service (SMCS) for a list of five (5) names
within ten (10) days of Local 150’s request for binding arbitration. If the
parties are unable to agree upon an arbitrator from the list, the alternate
strike method shall be utilized. It shall be understood that the arbitrator will
only interpret this MOU and will not have power to add to, delete from, or
amend any part of this MOU. The arbitrator’s decision shall be final and
binding on the Center, Local 150 and the grievant. All fees and costs of the
arbitrator and court reporter, if any, will be borne equally by the parties.

Local 150

24
39



11.

00122753.1

HEALTH INSURANCE AND OTHER BENEFITS

11.1  Medical Insurance Plans

Eligible unit members shall be provided medical insurance plans in accordance with
options available to PERS contracting agencies.

11.2  Other Benefits

Eligible unit members shall be provided with dental and vision plans plus other
insurances and benefits as set forth in Appendix B.

11.3  Center’s Maximum Monthly Contribution

The Center’s maximum monthly contribution toward the cost of all insurance benefits
shall be as set forth in Appendix B.

Local 150

25
40



12.

00122753.1

HOLIDAYS

12.1

12.2

List of Holidays

Each unit member shall be entitled to compensation, for the following fourteen (14)
holidays in accordance with Paragraph 12.2 below.

January 1%

3" Monday in January
2" Monday in February
3" Monday in February
Last Monday in May
July 4™

1% Monday in September
2" Monday in October
November 11™

4" Thursday in November
Friday after Thanksgiving
December 24"

December 25"

December 31%

Compensation

New Years Day

Martin Luther King Jr. Day
Lincoln’s Birthday
President’s Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day

Columbus Day
Veterans Day
Thanksgiving Day

Day After Thanksgiving
Christmas Eve
Christmas Day

New Years Eve

Pay for these fourteen (14) holidays shall be as follows:

12.2.1

Unit members assigned to a shift-based schedule (i.e. other than 5/8/40)

shall have the following options:

12.2.1.1

Each November, the unit member shall make one of the

following written elections for the coming calendar year:

o to receive pay for up to one hundred sixty-eight (168)
holiday hours — see 12.2.1.2 below; or

o to receive one hundred twelve (112) holiday hours to be
scheduled in the same manner as vacation.

12.2.1.2

If pay is selected:

a.  If the holiday falls on the unit member’s regular day off
and the unit member does not work — he/she shall be paid
eight (8) hours of premium holiday at straight time
(exclusive of FLSA). If the unit member is scheduled to
work on a holiday and takes personal time off (VAC,
CTO, etc.) he/she shall receive eight (8) hours premium
holiday pay at straight time (exclusive of FLSA).

26

Local 150

41



00122753.1

12.3

Eligibility

If the holiday falls on the unit member’s regular day off
and the unit member works — he/she shall be paid regular
pay (including FLSA if appropriate), plus premium
holiday pay (at straight time) for the number of hours
actually worked. However, if the unit member actually
works less than eight (8) hours, he/she shall receive
premium holiday pay (at straight time) for eight (8) hours.

If the unit member works on a holiday which is not the
unit member’s regular day off — he/she shall be paid
regular pay (including FLSA if appropriate) plus premium
holiday pay (at straight time) for the number of hours
actually worked.

If the unit member takes, sick leave, he/she shall receive
no premium holiday pay for hours taken off.

This provision (12.2.1.2) applies only to shifts that begin
on the holiday.

To receive pay for a holiday, the unit member must have been in full-paid status the
unit member’s regular shift immediately before, and immediately after, the holiday.

Local 150

27
42



13.

00122753.1

ON-CALL STATUS

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

Sign-Up

To cover for illnesses, other unforeseen circumstances, and/or to ensure adequate
staffing, an on-call program has been established. Each Dispatch Supervisor who is
assigned to work a shift-based schedule may sign up for an equally shared number of
on-call shifts on his/her days off. Where the number of on-call shifts per employee is
uneven, the extra shifts will be distributed in inverse order of seniority.

On-Call Period

Each on-call period will be fourteen (14) hours (day shift on-call will be 0500 to
1900, and night shift on-call will be 1700 to 0700). An on-call person will only be
scheduled to work up to twelve (12) hours within that period, but must be available
for contact/assignment during the entire period. The unit member will be given a
designated time to report (this shall not be sooner than two (2) hours after contact).
Except in cases of a specifically deferred start time, a unit member may report to
work as soon as possible after contact.

Compensation
For each on-call shift, the unit member will be compensated Fifty Dollars ($50.00).

13.3.1  Payment shall typically be made in the same manner as out-of-class. The
Center shall process as soon as reasonably practical.

13.3.2  If the unit member is required to work, pay shall be calculated in the normal
manner.

13.3.3  Unit members who are sick for their on-call day will not be compensated.

Day Shift/Night Shift

13.4.1  Unit members assigned to the day shift, who work the majority of their
hours on the day-shift, must sign up for their on-call for the day shift time
period.

13.4.2  Unit members assigned to the night shift, who work the majority of their
hours on the night shift, must sign up for their on-call for the night shift
time period.

13.4.3  Unit members whose shifts are equitably split (six [6] hours on days and six
[6] hours on nights) shall sign up for their on-call for the night shift time
period.

13.4.4  All unit members shall receive a mandatory ten (10) hours off between the
overtime shift and their regularly scheduled shift.

Local 150

28
43



13.5 Three Month Intervals

The on-call sign up list will be posted for three (3) month intervals (January-March,
April-June, July-September, and October-December).

13.6  Shift Trades

Once each unit member has signed up for their required number of on-call shifts,
these shifts can be traded with management approval.

Local 150

00122753.1

29
44



14.

00122753.1

OVERTIME

14.1

14.2

14.3

Advance Approval

All overtime shall be approved in advance.

FLSA

When unit members are directed to work overtime, such overtime worked on the
Dispatch floor shall be paid at time and one-half (1.5) irrespective of FLSA status.

Adjusted Work Hours

14.3.1  Any unit member rendering more than fourteen (14) hours of consecutive
service, who is regularly scheduled to return to the dispatch floor less than
ten (10) hours following such service, shall have the option of:

14.3.1.1  Adjusting his or her start time to give ten (10) hours off;
14.3.1.2  Working his or her full scheduled hours;

14.3.1.3 In accordance with adjusted work hours, working the hours
remaining in his or her regularly scheduled shift (employee will
be compensated for total hours during work week); or

14.3.1.4  Receiving pay for the amount of hours worked on the preceding
shift, report for duty ten (10) hours after preceding shift, and
work an adjusted shift of twelve (12) consecutive hours.

Local 150

30
45



15. OUT-OF-CLASS PAY

15.1 Higher Classification

When, at the sole discretion of the Center, a unit member is assigned to work in a
higher classification:

15.1.1 at least one-half (*2) of a full shift, he or she shall be compensated at his/her
base rate of pay plus Fifty Dollars ($50.00) per shift for the shift to which
the person is assigned.

15.1.2  less than one-half (%) of a full shift, he/she shall be compensated at his/her
base rate of pay plus one-half (%2) the full shift rate (see 15.1.1).

15.2 Trainer

Dispatcher Supervisors assigned by the Deputy Director Operations to serve as a
“trainer” shall receive a fifteen percent (15%) base hourly rate increase while
performing trainer duties.

15.2.1  To serve as a “trainer” requires that the unit member prepare an evaluation,
maintain training logs, etc. It does not include periods of time where the
unit member is engaged in a “sit-along”.

15.2.2  Center Senior Staff shall meet and confer with Unit representatives prior to
determining:

15.2.2.1 The qualifications needed to serve as a “trainer”; and

15.2.2.2 Who shall serve as a “trainer.”

Local 150

00122753.1

31
46



16. PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

The Center shall provide payroll deduction services for Local 150 dues and other programs
approved by the Center when said deductions are authorized in writing by the unit member in
a manner to be specified by the Center.

Local 150
00122753.1

32
47



17.

00122753.1

PROBATIONARY PERIOD

17.1

17.2

Initial Period

All unit members shall serve a probationary period of twelve (12) months.

17.1.1  The probationary period is a continuation of the selection process. During
such time, probationary unit members may be released, at any time, at the

sole discretion of the Center and without cause.

17.1.2  Aregular unit member whose promotion is rescinded shall have the right to
return to his/her former rank.

17.1.3  During the initial probationary period, a new unit member shall not have
access to the grievance procedure.

Extension of Probation

The probationary period may be extended, at the sole discretion of the Center, if a
unit member has not successfully completed training within the twelve (12) month
period or if the unit member has missed at least fifteen (15) consecutive days of work.

17.21 A “work missed” extension shall not exceed the number of shifts/days the
unit member missed. Pre-approved vacation shall not trigger this provision.

17.2.2  Written notice of the extension shall be provided to the unit member.

Local 150

33
48



18.

00122753.1

REDUCTIONS IN FORCE

18.1

18.2

18.3

Meet and Confer

Local 150 and the Center shall make every reasonable effort to cooperate so as to
avoid economic or other circumstances which would require a reduction in Center
staffing. This mutual obligation to reopen the meet and confer process extends to any
provision of this MOU which relates to the circumstances which threaten to cause a
reduction in force. If during its term the parties hereto should mutually agree to
modify, amend or alter the provisions of this MOU in any respect, such changes shall
be effective only when reduced to writing and executed by the authorized
representatives of the Center and Local 150. Any such changes validly made shall
become a part of this MOU and subject to its terms.

Board Decision

In the event the Governing Board, in its exclusive judgment, ultimately decides that a
reduction in force shall be implemented, the Board shall specify the number of
positions to be authorized within each job classification.

Procedures

The Executive Director or the Executive Director’s designee shall then designate
those unit members to be laid off in accordance with the following principles:

18.3.1  Unit members shall be laid off in inverse order of seniority by job
classification.

18.3.1.1 A unit member laid off from a higher paying job classification
shall, however, have the right to “bump” unit members in a lower
paying job classification in which the higher paid unit member
previously had permanent status.

18.3.1.2 A unit member who “bumps” to a lower paying job classification
will be placed on the seniority list for that classification in
accordance with Article 23.

18.3.1.3 For the purposes of this Article, seniority shall be determined
within job classifications in accordance with Article 23.

18.3.2 In the event a unit member “bumps” to a lower paying job classification in
accordance with the provisions of this Article, his/her salary shall be
immediately reduced to the step of the lower salary range which would
have applied had the unit member never been promoted to the higher
paying position.

18.3.3  When vacancies occur within two (2) years after the date a unit member is
laid off under this Article, the unit member shall be given the opportunity to
be rehired or advanced to their former classification provided a vacancy

Local 150

34
49



00122753.1

18.3.4

exists in that classification, in accordance with seniority and prior to the
employment of any new unit member in that classification; provided
however, that such reduced or laid-off unit member meets the physical and
other qualifying standards in effect at the same time that they had been
previously appointed to the classification into which they seek to be
returned. If any such reduced or laid-off unit member fails to report for
duty within thirty (30) calendar days after the mailing to him/her of a
written notice by registered mail to the last known address, he/she shall
have lost the right to be rehired or advanced hereunder.

In the event that a unit member is advanced from one job classification to
another job classification in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph
18.3.3. above, his/her salary shall revert to the step of the higher range that
would have applied had there not been a reduction in job classification as a
result of a general layoff.

Local 150

35
50



19. REHIRES

19.1  Eligibility

A unit member in good standing who voluntarily separates from the bargaining unit is
eligible to be rehired and/or reinstated within twelve (12) months of separation. The
Center shall be the sole determiner of former employee eligibility with respect to this
provision.

19.2  Seniority
A unit member rehired within twelve (12) months of a prior separation will retain the

seniority date he/she had at the time of separation, which shall be adjusted in
accordance with Article 23.3 to reflect the break in service.

19.3 Compensation

19.3.1 A rehired or reinstated unit member’s salary shall be at the same step as
when he/she separated from employment.

19.3.2 A rehired or reinstated unit member’s date for step movement will be
his/her date of rehire in accordance with Article 23.3 of this MOU.

19.4  Vacation and Sick Leave

19.4.1  Separation from Center Employment

19.4.1.1  All vacation and sick leave accrual will start from the date of re-
hire.

19.4.1.2  There shall be no entitlement to previous vacation or sick leave
time based upon prior employment.

19.4.2  Separation from the Bargaining Unit

19.4.2.1 A unit member who separated from the bargaining unit but not
from Center employment shall retain his/her vacation and sick
leave accruals.

19.5 Probationary Period

All rehired and/or reinstated unit members will serve a probationary period of six (6)
months.

Local 150

00122753.1

36
51



20.

00122753.1

RETIREMENT PLAN

20.1

20.2

20.3

20.4

PERS Contribution

20.1.1

20.1.2

Retirement benefits shall be provided to eligible unit members in
accordance with the contract between the Center and the Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS) effective July 1, 1981, and as amended effective
December 1, 1983, December 1, 1984, Junel0, 1997, December 1, 1999,
March 1, 2007, April 1, 2012, April 1, 2013, and November 1, 2013.

The Center’s PERS contract shall include:

(@ A benefit formula of 2.7% @ 55 for individuals not meeting the
definition of a new member according to the Public Employee’s
Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA), Section 7522.04(f) (“Classic”
members).

(b) A benefit formula of 2.0% @ 62 for individuals meeting the
definition of a new member according to PEPRA, Section 7522.04(f)
(“New” members).

1959 Survivor Benefits

Each unit member shall pay two dollars ($2.00) per month for 1959 Survivor (Level
3) benefits.

Employer Paid Member Contributions (EPMC)

20.3.1

20.3.2

The Center shall pay the employee portion of retirement costs to a
maximum of eight percent (8%) for Classic members. Pursuant to PEPRA,
Section 7522.30, EPMC may not be paid for New members.

EPMC shall be treated as reportable compensation for purposes of PERS.

Sharing Additional Costs

204.1

20.4.2

Unit members receiving a benefit formula of 2.7% @ 55 shall contribute
per the table at 20.4.2, below, of their PERS reportable compensation to
defray the cost of optional benefits.

The table below lists maximum cost sharing amounts for the Center, as
determined by CalPERS, December 3, 2010.

Local 150

37
52



Permanent Unfunded Total Unfunded
Amendment Accrued Liability | Accrued Liability
Increases
Increase Increase

2% @ 60 to 2% @ 55 1.730% 1.136%
2% @ 5510 2.7% @ 55 1.904% 2.916%
Total until 12/1/2019: 3.634% 4.052% 7.686%
Total from 12/1/2019 to 3/1/2027: 3.634% 2.916% 6.550%
Total after 3/1/2027: 3.634% 0.000% 3.634%

20.5 Center Contribution to Retiree Health Benefit Premiums

20.5.1  Employee eligibility for Center contributions toward retiree medical benefit
programs (to the cap set forth in Appendix B) shall be graduated according
to the following schedule:

Credited Completed Percentage of
Years of Continuous Service Center Contribution

1 5%

2 10%
3 15%
4 20%
5 25%
6 30%
7 35%
8 40%
9 45%
10 50%
11 55%
12 60%
13 65%
14 70%
15 75%
16 80%
17 85%
18 90%
19 95%
20 100%

20.5.2  Notwithstanding Section 20.5.1, a unit member employed on October 30,
2012, who would have less than twenty (20) years of continuous service
with the Center by age 55, shall be entitled upon retirement from the Center
to 100% Center contribution (to the cap set forth in Appendix B).

20.5.3  Any unit member hired on or after July 1, 2014, upon retirement from the
Center, notwithstanding Appendix B, section 2.a.(3), shall receive a sum,
not to exceed One Thousand Three Hundred Dollars ($1,300.00) per month,

Local 150

00122753.1

38
53




20.6

00122753.1

to be used towards Retiree Health Benefits for the unit member and
qualified dependents. Any unused portion shall be retained by the Center.
The One Thousand Three Hundred Dollars ($1,300.00) shall be pro-rated
according to the schedule set forth in Section 20.5.1.

20.5.4  Effective July 1, 2014, each unit member shall contribute to defraying the
cost of Post-Employment Retirement Benefits by paying One Hundred
Dollars ($100.00) per month to the Center for placement in a fund that will
be utilized to satisfy the future OPEB obligations of the Center.

Sick Leave Redemption Credit

On March 1, 2007, the Center signed an Amendment to its Contract with PERS. Under this
Amendment, unused sick leave benefits may be converted for retirement credit as provided
for in Section 20965 of the Public Employee’s Retirement Law.

Local 150

39
54



21.

00122753.1

RULES AND REGULATIONS

The Center shall have the right to adopt reasonable Rules and Regulations subject to prior
notice to Local 150 and the right to meet and confer on any matter within the scope of
representation.

Local 150

40
55



22.

00122753.1

SAVINGS CLAUSE

If any Article or provision of this MOU or any portion thereof or the application of such to
any person or circumstance is inconsistent with applicable law or is otherwise held to be
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this MOU or the application of
such portion to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid shall
not be affected.

Local 150

41
56



23.

00122753.1

SENIORITY

23.1

23.2

23.3

Seniority Lists

There shall be two (2) seniority lists for members of the bargaining unit. See
Appendix D.

23.1.1

23.1.2

List #1 (Promotion Date) shall be:

23.1.1.1 based on the unit member’s first day of paid service in a
probationary capacity in the classification of Dispatch Supervisor
(includes time in highest classifications);

23.1.1.2 used for shift bids, step raises, and reductions in force.

23.1.1.3 in the instance where more than one Dispatcher is promoted to the
position of Dispatch Supervisor on the same day, seniority shall
be based on actual date of hire. In the instance where the actual
date of hire is the same, seniority shall revert to the seniority
assigned at the onset of the Dispatch Recruit Academy.

List #2 (Center Hire Date) shall be:

23.1.2.1 based on the unit member’s actual date of hire by the Center in a
probationary capacity. The date shall be adjusted back to the first
of the month if employed from the first (1%) through the fifteenth
(15™) calendar day, and forward to the first of the next month if
employed from the sixteenth (16™) calendar day through the end
of the month.

23.1.2.2 used for leave accrual rates and longevity increases.

Additions to the Seniority Lists

23.2.1

23.2.2

New unit members are added to List #1 based on date of promotion to the
classification of Dispatch Supervisor.

New unit members are added to the bottom of List #2 based on hire date by
the Center.

Adjustment of Seniority Dates

23.3.1

23.3.2

There shall be no adjustment of seniority date on List #1 and/or List #2 for
a Center employee who moves between units 856 and 150 without a break
in service.

A unit member’s placement on List #1, and/or List #2 shall be adjusted for
any break in service, including any leave of absence (other than military),
which extends for a period of more than ninety (90) calendar days.

Local 150

42
57



23.3.3  Re-hired unit members shall have their placement on List #1 and/or List #2
adjusted to exclude time not employed.

Local 150

00122753.1

43
58



24. SHIFT BID

24.1  Annual Shift Bid

24.1.1  Unit members shall “bid” for preferred shifts, by seniority as set forth in
Appendix D, List #1, on an annual basis.

24.1.2 By September 15" of each year, the Center shall provide the Union with a
list of authorized positions.

24.1.3  The Union shall conduct the annual shift bid and present the results to the
Deputy Director Operations within fourteen (14) calendar days of receiving
the list of authorized positions.

24.1.4  Within fourteen (14) calendar days of presentation of the results, the Center
will confirm, or deny, assignments for the coming year.

Local 150
00122753.1

44
59



25.

00122753.1

TERM OF AGREEMENT AND REOPENERS

25.1

25.2

Term

The terms and conditions of this MOU shall remain in full force and effect from date
of ratification through and including June 30, 2021, or:

25.1.1  Until earlier amended, modified, or superseded by a properly executed and
accepted MOU between the parties, or

25.1.2 In the event of an impasse in negotiations concerning an amendment or
modification to the terms and conditions specified herein, by motion or
resolution of the Governing Board of the Center, or

25.1.3 In the event of an emergency, upon notice to Local 150 from the Center, all
of the portions of this MOU may be temporarily suspended. This
suspension shall be subject to the right of Local 150 to subsequently meet
and confer on the Center’s emergency actions, or

25.1.4 In the event the Joint Powers Agency known as the Sacramento Regional
Public Safety Communications Center is dissolved.

Reopeners

25.2.1  There shall be no reopeners for the term of this MOU.

25.2.2  Effective January 1, 2020, the salary schedule shall be improved by three

percent (3%).

Local 150

45
60



26. TESTING RELEASE TIME

Unit members who are scheduled to participate in promotional or certification examinations
sponsored by the Center shall be released from duty for the period of time necessary to
permit their participation in the examination process.

Local 150

00122753.1

46
61



217.

00122753.1

TRAINING

All parties recognize the importance of training in the professional development of the public
safety dispatcher in order to meet the needs of the Center’s internal and external customers.
“Scheduled training” is training ordered by the Center.

27.1  Unit members who have been scheduled for training shall attend the scheduled
training and shall only be excused in the case of serious illness of unforeseen
emergency. As feasible, a unit member will be designated as an alternate to attend
training in the place of the person who was actually scheduled should that person be
unable to attend.

27.2 The Center may mandate staff to provide coverage for persons who must attend
mandatory and update training.

27.3  All persons receiving scheduled training, unless occurring when a person is normally
assigned to be at work as part of their regular shift, shall be compensated in
accordance with Article 14.2.

Local 150

47
62



28.

00122753.1

UNIFORMS
28.1  Options

28.2

28.3

28.4

Each unit member may choose from the following four (4) options for attire in the
performance of his/her duties:

Class A uniform;

Class B uniform;

Business professional attire; or
Business casual attire.

el NS =

The attire shall be appropriate for the duties being performed. The Center shall meet
and confer with affected unit representatives prior to adopting a policy that defines
“Business Professional” and “Business Casual.”

Initial Hire
Upon initial hire by the Center, each unit member shall receive a voucher for a
Uniform (Class A or Class B at the unit member’s option) (see Center Policy for

description of uniform). This shall not apply in the case of promotions.

Annual Allowance

28.3.1  Commencing July 1, 2019, and each July thereafter of this contract, the unit
member shall receive the sum of Five Hundred Fifty Dollars ($550.00) to
purchase additional uniforms or for uniform maintenance.

28.3.2  Effective January 1, 2019 and every January thereafter, each non-
probationary unit member shall receive a uniform voucher in an amount not
to exceed the cost of a Class A Uniform or Three Hundred Fifty Dollars
($350.00).

Patches

The Center shall make patches available at no cost to unit members, through the
uniform supplier, to be placed on all new uniforms purchased. When a uniform is
taken out of service, the used patch shall be returned to the Center.

Local 150

48
63



29.

00122753.1

WAGES

29.1

29.2

29.3

29.4

29.5

Salary Schedule

Effective upon ratification, each unit member in the bargaining unit shall be paid in
accordance with the unit member’s placement on the salary schedule which is
Appendix C, Base Salary Ranges Exclusive of FLSA.

Night Shift Differential

A night shift differential shall be paid to each unit member assigned to the 1900-0700
hour shift at the rate of Fifteen Dollars ($15.00) per shift actually worked.

Longevity

The following non-cumulative longevity increments shall be paid to eligible unit
members:

29.3.1  One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) per month after ten (10) complete years of
service.

29.3.2  An additional One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) per month for each five (5)
years of service completed following the first ten (10) years of service.

Placement/Advancement

29.4.1  All New Hires

New unit members shall be hired at that step which is commensurate with
their education/experience, skills/abilities and recruitment difficulty.

29.4.2 Once placed on a salary range (assuming multiple steps in the range)
advancement from one salary step to another shall occur on the unit
member’s promotion date and shall be contingent upon the absence of an
unsatisfactory job performance evaluation and completion of the required
length of service.

Other Than Shift-Based Assignments

29.5.1 Dispatch Supervisors selected and assigned by management to serve in
other than shift-based assignments will work the forty-hour (40) work
schedule, with an unpaid lunch, to be agreed upon by the Supervisor and
their manager, with the Executive Director’s approval.  Dispatch
Supervisors in this Administrative assignment (Training, Operations, and
EMS) shall receive a fifteen percent (15%) pay incentive during such
assignment. In the event that a Dispatch Supervisor elects to work
operational overtime on a scheduled day off, he/she shall earn overtime
based upon the Dispatch Supervisor’s base pay step.

Local 150

49
64



00122753.1

29.5.2

Dispatch Supervisors assigned/working a shift-based assignment and
assigned Administrative responsibilities/duties (Training, Operations, EMS)
as determined by the Deputy Director Operations shall be eligible for a ten
percent (10%) base hourly rate increase for hours worked determined by the
Deputy Director Operations. These incentives/responsibilities are only
available while the corresponding administrative Supervisor position
(Training, Operations, EMS) is vacant. Note: This hourly rate increase
cannot be in addition to an increase in base pay for assignment as a
Trainer, referenced in section 15.2.

29.6 Compensatory Time Off (CTO)

29.6.1

Accrual Limit. Unless requested by the unit member, and approved by
Center management, no unit member shall earn CTO.

29.6.1.1 If CTO is granted, no unit member may have credited to his/her
account more than eighty (80) hours of CTO at any time.

29.6.1.2  All hours worked, when the total of credited CTO exceeds
eighty (80) shall be compensated in accordance with FLSA
standards.

29.6.1.3  All CTO credited to a unit member’s account shall be paid in
cash to the unit member with the June payroll. Any CTO
scheduled as time off in the month following the scheduled
payout is exempt from this cash out.

29.7 Processing Payment of Wages

29.7.1

Unit members shall be paid once per month on the last day of the month:

29.7.1.1  Each paycheck shall include the unit member’s regular hourly
rate (i.e. straight time) for all regularly scheduled hours of work
for the month of payment.

29.7.1.2  Overtime, FLSA, on call, night shift differential, out-of-class
pay and holiday pay, earned during the payment period, shall be
paid through the identified cutoff date found on the Payroll
Calendar.

29.7.1.3  Any overtime, FLSA, on-call, night shift differential, out-of-
class pay and holiday pay, not included in the paycheck for the
payment period in which such amounts were earned, shall be
paid on the next regular payday.

29.7.1.4  If the failure to include payments for overtime, FLSA, on-call,
night shift differential, out-of-class pay and holiday pay, is due
to error not attributable to the affected unit member(s), the
Center shall make an “in lieu of payment” to the affected unit

Local 150

50
65



member(s), as long as the payment error exceeds Fifty Dollars
($50.00). If the payment error is Fifty Dollars ($50.00) or less,
the affected unit member(s) shall be paid on the next regular

payday.

29.7.2  Should payroll not be processed in the manner set forth above, the parties
shall attempt to resolve the problem informally.

29.8 Daylight Savings Time Schedule Adjustments

29.8.1  Fall: If time at work is extended by one (1) hour beyond the normal shift,
the unit member shall be compensated for the additional one (1) hour at
his/her overtime rate.

29.8.2  Spring: If time at work is decreased by one (1) hour short of the normal
shift, the unit member will still be paid for his/her full shift.

Local 150

00122753.1

o1
66



30.

00122753.1

WORKWEEK
30.1 Definitions
30.1.1  Shift: Twelve (12) consecutive work hours.
30.1.2 Work Day: Twenty-four (24) consecutive hours, beginning at 0700 and
ending at 0659 the following calendar day.
30.1.3 Work Week: The work week begins at 0700 hours on Sunday and
concludes at 0659 hours on the following Sunday.
30.1.4 The Center, in cooperation with Local 150, reserves the right to explore

30.2

additional alternate work schedules, i.e., 4-10s, 5-8s, 9-80s etc.

Work Schedule

30.2.1

30.2.2

30.2.3

The work schedule shall be determined by the Center after consultation
with affected unit members.

Unit members are required to work a normal work week, exclusive of
overtime and paid leave. However, the Center has the discretion to assign
other than a normal workweek to a unit member based upon the needs of
the Center.

Nothing contained herein shall restrict management’s right to assign,
reassign or rotate personnel for the benefit of the Center and/or unit
member needs.

Local 150

52
67



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the representatives of each party to this Memorandum of Understanding
have affixed their signatures to this document on the dates set forth below.

SACRAMENTO REGIONAL
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS
CENTER

By:

Marc Bentovoja
Interim Executive Director

Dated:

00122753.1

53

TEAMSTERS LOCAL 150

By:
[ ]
Secretary/Treasurer
Dated:
By:
[ ]
Local 150 Unit Representative
Dated:
By:
[ ]
Local 150 Unit Representative
Dated:
By:
Mario Contreras
Local 150
Business Representative
Dated:

Local 150

68



APPENDIX A-1

STEP ONE
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY
COMMUNICATIONS CENTER
GRIEVANCE FORM
NOTE: Before filing a formal written grievance, the grievant is strongly encouraged to attempt to resolve

the grievance in an informal conference with his/her immediate supervisor. The formal Step 1 written
grievance must be filed within thirty (30) calendar days after the grievant knew or should reasonably
have known of the alleged violation of the Memorandum of Understanding.

Date of Informal Conference: Supervisor Present at Informal:
1. List the specific Contract provision(s) alleged to have been violated:
ARTICLE PARAGRAPH ARTICLE PARAGRAPH
ARTICLE PARAGRAPH ARTICLE PARAGRAPH
ARTICLE PARAGRAPH ARTICLE PARAGRAPH
2. The date, or date(s), on which the violation allegedly occurred:
3. Describe how the contract articles/paragraphs listed in #1 above were violated; facts must be provided.

(Attach additional sheets if necessary)

4. Explain why the supervisor’s proposed solution at the informal level was not acceptable. Be specific.

(Attach additional sheets if necessary)

5. Specifically, what remedy do you want:
Date Submitted: Date Received:
Grievant's Signature: Received By:
6. Center’s Step | Response:

(Attach additional sheets if necessary)

00122753.1

54
69



SACRAMENTO REGIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY
COMMUNICATIONS CENTER
STEP 2 GRIEVANCE APPEAL FORM

APPENDIX A-2
STEP TWO

Date Step | filed:

Date Step | decision rendered:

Reason(s) for Appeal:

Specific Remedy Sought:

Conference Requested: Yes

No

Date Submitted:

Date Received:

Grievant's Signature:

Received By:

Center Response:

00122753.1

55

70



APPENDIX B

SACRAMENTO REGIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS CENTER

INSURANCE AND OTHER BENEFITS

The Center shall provide insurance and other benefits as set forth in this Appendix.

1. PLANS AVAILABLE

a.

00122753.1

Medical Insurance

The Center shall provide each full-time unit member, and his/her dependents, with
the option of enrolling in any medical insurance plan available through its contract
with the Health Division of PERS.

Dental Insurance

Each full-time unit member, and his/her dependents, may enroll in the dental plan
selected by the Center.

Vision Plan

Each full-time unit member, and his/her dependents, may enroll in the vision plan
selected by the Center.

Life Insurance, Accidental Death and Dismemberment, and Long-Term Disability
Each full-time unit member shall be enrolled in the term life insurance, accidental
death and dismemberment, and may be enrolled in long-term disability policies
selected by the Center. Unit member pays for Long-Term Disability Insurance.

State Disability Insurance

Each full-time unit member shall participate in the State Disability Insurance (SDI)
Program. Unit member pays for State Disability Insurance.

Employee Assistance Program

The Center shall provide each full-time unit member with access to the Employee
Assistance Program selected by the Center. The Center shall pay the monthly
premium for this plan.

Local 150

56
71



2.

00122753.1

MONTHLY PREMIUMS AND OTHER COSTS

a.

Premiums

(1)

()

3)

(4)

If actually required, and subject to the “pool” provisions set forth in Section
4, the Center will pay, up to the following amounts on behalf of a full-time
unit member hired prior to July 1, 2014 unless the unit member exercises the
Center’s Health Benefit (Medical, Dental, Vision) Opt-Out benefit option
described below.

For Medical: The actual premium cost (at the lesser of Kaiser HMO or Blue
Shield HMO) for employee plus one (spouse or child).
Employee Only enrollees shall receive actual premium cost
(employee’s choice of Kaiser HMO or Blue Shield HMO).

For Dental: ~ The actual premium cost for employee plus one (spouse or
child).

For Vision:  The actual premium cost for employee plus one (spouse or
child).

For Opt-Out Benefit:
Any unit member who chooses to Opt-Out of the Center’s
Health Benefits (Medical, Dental and/or Vision) shall receive
Four Hundred Fifty Dollars ($450.00) per month. The unit
member shall be required to sign an Opt-Out Benefit waiver.

For all new unit members hired on or after July 1, 2014, the Center will pay
up to One Thousand Three Hundred Dollars ($1,300.00) on behalf of a full-
time unit member to be applied to Medical, Dental and/or Vision benefits.
The provisions of Appendix B, Section 2.a. (3) are not applicable to these unit
members. Any unused funds shall remain in the Center’s Health Benefit
“Pool.” (Appendix B,4.)

On any January 1, for unit members hired prior to July 1, 2014, if the increase
in the premium cost for any plan (medical, dental or vision) is greater than
five percent (5%), the Center’s obligation shall be limited to five percent
(5%) for that plan.

Only unit members actually enrolled in a Center-provided plan will receive an
employer contribution for that insurance.

IRC Section 125 Plan

1)

2)

The Center shall establish, and maintain, an IRC Section 125 Plan for the
benefit of its employees.

Monthly costs, if any, shall be borne by employees.

Local 150

o7
72



00122753.1

PAYROLL DEDUCTION

Any unit member who is enrolled in one or more of the plans set forth above which costs
more than the Center’s required specific monthly contribution is required to sign a payroll
deduction form and pay the monthly difference by payroll deduction. Failure to execute a
payroll deduction form will result in immediate cancellation of insurance for non-payment of
premiums.

“POOL”

a.

Each December of this MOU, the parties shall meet to establish a “pool” to assist Full
Family enrollees with over-cap costs.

Members of the pool shall include all bargaining unit members and all non-
represented (excluding contracted positions) employees at the Center.

The pool shall be created by the difference in actual premiums (medical, dental and
vision) between Employee Only enrollees (as of January 1) and the Employee + 1
cap.

The pool dollars shall be distributed equally to Full Family enrollees (as of January 1)
to establish the Full Family cap for the year. The amount distributed to a Full Family
Member enrollee shall not exceed the actual cost of the plan in which they are
enrolled. (The lesser of Kaiser or Blue Shield HMO). Any residual funds remaining
in the pool will be equally distributed amongst the remaining non-full family
enrollees.

Local 150

58
73



SALARY RANGES

DISPATCH SUPERVISOR

(Exclusive of FLSA)

Eff. Ratification

Hourly Rates

Position Stepl | Step2 | Step3 | Step4 | Step5
Supervisor 36.31 38.13 40.03 42.03 44.14
Eff. January 1, 2020
Hourly Rates
Position Stepl | Step2 | Step3 | Step4 | Step5
Supervisor 37.40 39.27 41.23 43.29 45.46
00122753.1
59

APPENDIX C

Local 150

74



00122753.1

(Shift/Vacation Bid/On call/Mandatory OT)

SENIORITY LISTS

List #1

APPENDIX D

Local 150

First Name Last Name Employee ID Promotion Date
1 Julee Todd 510107 01/05/07
2 Tara Poirier 510133 11/13/15
3 Casey Quintard 510152 01/01/17
4 Elizabeth Strong 510129 05/06/17
5 Ava Donna Fender 510080 07/13/17

List #2
(RIF)

First Name Last Name Employee ID Hire Date
1 Ava Donna Fender 510080 11/08/99
2 Julee Todd 510107 02/10/03
3 Elizabeth Strong 510129 12/06/04
4 Tara Poirier 510133 09/19/05
5 Casey Quintard 510155 03/02/09

60

75



00122753.1

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING
between the
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL FIRE/EMS COMMUNICATIONS CENTER
and the
TEAMSTERS LOCAL 150

The Sacramento Regional Public Safety Communications Center (“Center™) and Teamsters
Local 130 (“Local 150™ or “Union™) have recently completed negotiations for a sueccessor
collective bargaining agreement. While not a part of the collective bargaining agreement, the
parties agree:

1

That the Center shall place the following concept in a Standard Operating Procedure
(“SOP™):

Except with written Center approval, and the consent of the unit member,
no unit member shall render service for more than sixteen (16)
consecutive hours assigned to the dispatch floor. This shall not apply in
cases of emergency or deployment.

Prior to modifying the SOP during the term of the successor collective bargaining
agreement (ratification through June 30, 2021), the parties shall meet and confer
regarding the effects of the change on wages, hours, terms and conditions of employment
of unit members.

Any unit member emploved on July 1, 2018 who retired between July 1, 2018 and
December 31, 2018 (with at least twenty [20] vears of service to the Center) shall receive
a sum of money derived from a Performance/Longevity Bonus calculation similar to
that performed for other unit members.

The Center’s Uniform Policy shall be subject to the meet and consult process utilizing the
Joint Labor Management Committee.

FOR LOCAL 150 FOR THE SACRAMENTO REGIONAL

By:
Date:

00109915.1

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS
CENTER

By:

Date:

61

Local 150

76



00122753.1

SIDE LETTER
between the
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS CENTER
and the
TEAMSTERS LOCAL 150

(Access to New Employee Orientation for Bargaining Unit Members)

Assembly Bill No. 119 [2017] (“AB 119”) was approved by the Governor on June 27, 2017.

The Sacramento Regional Public Safety Communications Center (“Center™) and Local 150 (*150” or
“Union™) have agreed to this Side Letter regarding Teamster access to the Center’s new employee
orientation for bargaining unit members.

1. AB 119:

a. Imposed on public employers the mandatory obligation to provide an exclusive
representative with access to new employee orientations for bargaining unit members.

b. Defines a new employee orientation as the on-boarding process pursuant to which new
employees are advised of their employment status, rights, bencfits, dutics, and
responsibilities, or any other employment-related matters. The on-boarding process can
take place in person, on-line, or through other means or methods.

[ Requires the structure, time, and manner of an exclusive representative’s access to the
on-boarding process implemented by the emplover to be determined through mutual
agreement between the employer and the exclusive representative.

2. As required by AB 119, the partics have negoliated the following structure, time, and manner
provisions:
a. Except as permitted by statute, the Union shall be given not less than five (5) days’ notice

in advance of a new employee orientation.

b. If the Center chooses to on-board in person, the Union shall be given thirty (30) minutes
to discuss the rights and obligations created by the collective bargaining agreement and
the role of the representative, and to answer questions.

c. If the Center chooses to on-board new employees utilizing an on-line process, it will meet
and confer with the Union concerning how the Union will be given the opportunity to
discuss (on-line) the rights and obligations created by the collective bargaining agreement
and the role of the representative, and Lo answer queslions.

3 General Provisions
a. This MOU shall remain in full force and effect from the date it is signed, through June
30, 2021.
00107378.2

62

Local 150

77



00122753.1

(1) It shall automatically renew each year commencing July 1, 2021 unless either
party serves written notice upon the other party by the preceding April 1 of its
desire to renegotiate its provisions.

(2) Absent mutual agreement by the Parties, there shall be no reopening of
negotiations on this subject through June 30, 2021.

b. The Legislature has acknowledged that AB 119 imposes a State-mandated local program.
As a result, if the Center incurs costs in implementing the provisions of this MOU, and
the State fails or refuses to reimburse the Center for those costs, the terms of this MOU
shall be null and void and the Center shall be relieved of its obligations.
FOR LLOCAL 150 FOR THE SACRAMENTO REGIONAL
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS
CENTER
By: By
Date: Date:
00107378.2

63

Local 150

78



AGREEMENT
between the
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS CENTER
and the
FREIGHT CHECKERS, CLERICAL EMPLOYEES AND HELPERS,
LOCAL UNION 856

AFFILIATED WITH THE INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD
OF TEAMSTERS

July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2021

00122747.1

79



00122747.1

Page
PREAMBLE ..ottt ettt et et et e e e e e e e e e e eneens 1
1.1 PAITIES ...ttt ettt ettt e et eeneenes 1
1.2 AACCEPIANCE ...ttt et 1
1.3 Members of the Bargaining Unit ...........ccooiiiiiieeeee e 1
14 ENITE AQIEEIMENT......ui ittt a et be e be e 1
UNION MEMBERSHIP ...t 2
2.1 GBNETAL ... 2
2.2 Bargaining Unit Member INformation ...........cccoceiiiiniiiin i 2
2.3 Voluntary INfOrmMation ..o 3
2.4 SNOP STEWANTS. ...ttt 3
2.5 PaYrOll DEAUCTION ...ttt 3
BULLETIN BOARDS ..ottt ettt ettt e et a e neanes 4
CALL-BACK ...ttt ettt e 5
4.1 DETINITION ...t 5
4.2 (O00] 1] o 1=] 05714 0] o KSR P TR UPTPRPRRPN 5
4.3 AdJacent t0 @ SHIft .......cooiiiii s 5
4.4 Commencement of CompPensated TIME.......cooeieiererereie e 5
DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS ...ttt enes 6
5.1 DETINITION ...ttt ne e 6
5.2 Commencement Of INVESLIGAtION ..........ccooeiiriieie s 6
5.3 Notice of Proposed DisCiplinary ACLION ..........cccceiiiieiinie i 6
54 Withdrawal Of NOTICE.......c..oiieiii e 6
55 Binding ArDITratiON ........oiiiieiieie e 6
5.6 REtention Of RECOIUS. ........oiiiiicceec e 7
CENTER RIGHTS ...ttt 8
EDUCATION REIMBURSEMENT .......ciiiiiiiiieie et 9
7.1 TUILION, BOOKS, BLC. ....ueiuieiiiie ettt 9
7.2 JOD REIALEA. ...ttt 9
7.3 Cap 0N EXPENGITUIES ....c.viivieiiiiiie ettt sb e nne s 9
7.4 Eligibility for REIMDUISEMENT ......cooiiiiei e 9
7.5 Requests EXCEEA the Cap ......oivvviiiiii it 9
7.6 FIEX THIME et 9
7.7 NON-WOTKING TIME....ciiiiiiiii it bbb 10
7.8 EdUCALION INCENTIVES ...ttt 10
Local 856

TABLE OF CONTENTS

80



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

00122747.1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

(Continued)
Page
EMPLOYEE RIGHTS ...ttt 11
LEAVES ettt £ et E e Rt e Rt e Rt et et et neene e e e e eneas 12
9.1 FUNBIAI LBAVES ...t ettt 12
9.2 JUIY DULY LBAVE ...ttt bbb 13
9.3 SICK LBAVE ...ttt bbbt bbb e 14
9.4 VT L (oo S PSP R TR OPPRPPRURPRN 15
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE ......cooiiitiiiieiiee et 19
0TS0 B =1 1o o] 1SS 19
O o oo =To [ (USSR 19
HEALTH INSURANCE AND OTHER BENEFITS.......ccoiiiiiieeeeeeee e 21
11,1 Medical INSUFANCE PIANS ....cvviiiiiiiieiiee e 21
11,2 Other BENETITS ..ouviiiiie ettt 21
11.3  Center’s Maximum Monthly Contribution ...........cccoocviiiiiiiiii e 21
HOLIDAY'S . ettt ettt et et et et et e e e e 22
12,1 LISt OF HOIAYS. ... 22
12,2 COMPENSALION ...ttt e s e s e st eneeseeneeseeneeneaneenes 22
12.3  ENGIDIILY oo 23
LEAVES OF ABSENCE ...ttt 24
131 MIHIEAIY oo bbb 24
132 DISADITITY ..oivieiiiiie ittt rs 24
133 POISONAL.....iiiiiiiiiieiii ettt bbb nns 24
13.4 In Case of a RIF or Exercise of Management Rights ...........cccocvvrevininninininsiienne 24
13.5  REIUMN 10 WOTK ..ottt st 25
13.6  Employee Organization LEAVE...........ccueiiieiieriiieeeee e 25
ON-CALL DISPATCHER STATUS ...ttt 27
TA.L  SIGN-UP ittt n ettt enes 27
I O 1 T =1 | =T ¢ T o SR 27
14.3  COMPENSALION ..o.viiiiiiieiiieie sttt bbb re e sbe e e nbe e nes 27
14.4  Day Shift/Night SRift ..o 28
145  Three Month INTEIVAIS.........ccuoiiiiiieiiee s 28
4.6 SHITE TIAOES ..cviiiieiticie et bbbt nes 28
LA.7  SICK LBAVE....coiiiiieitieiie ittt et bbbt ettt 28
Local 856
ii

81



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

00122747.1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

(Continued)
Page
OVERTIME ...ttt ettt ettt e s be e st e s be e e e sreentenreeee e 29
151  ACAVANCE APPIOVAL ..ot 29
T I PSS 29
15.3  AdJUSTEd WOTK HOUIS ... 29
OUT-OF-CLASS PAY ..ottt ettt et e e enes 30
16.1  Higher ClassIfiCAtION .......ccoiiiiiiieie it 30
T I - 1[0 TSRS UR TP 30
PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS ......oooii ittt sre et nne 31
PROBATIONARY PERIOD ......cooiiiiiiiiee sttt nns 32
18.1 Initial Employment Dy the Center..........coovoiiiiieee s 32
18.2  Promotion Within the Bargaining UnNit..........c.ccooviiiiiiiniiin e 32
18.3  EXtension Of ProbDatiONary...........ccoceiieriiiienieiieie ettt 32
18.4  Continuation of SEleCtiON PrOCESS .......ccviiiiiiiiiiiiiienicsee s 33
REDUCTIONS IN FORCE.......cciiiiiiieieieiieie ettt ae e s 34
19.1  Meet and CONTEr .....oceiieee et re e nns 34
ST = To T 1o I 1= od 1 [ o RS 34
S TR T o o To=T o (RS 34
19.4  Retreat to Lower ClasSifiCation ...........ccccovveviiieieiie e 35
REHIRES ...ttt et e et e et e e st e st e e s enes 36
20.1  ENGIDIIILY voveiieieieic et 36
PO 1= o 1o 1 USSP OPI 36
20.3  COMPENSALION ...ttt b et st e et e beenbesbeebesreenbe e 36
20.4  Vacation and SICK LEAVE ........cceiieriiiieiiieiie et 36
20.5  Probationary Perioq .........cccooeieiiieiiieie et 37
RETIREMENT PLAN ..ottt ettt sna e beanaenne e e sre e nns 38
21.1  PERS CONIIDULION......oiiiiiiciicc et 38
21.2 1959 SUIVIVOFN BENETILS ....cvviiiiceicceee et 38
21.3  Employer Paid Member Contributions (EPMC)........ccccooeviiiiiiiiniiniee e 38
21.4  Sharing AdditioNal COSES .......ccviiiiieiieie et 38
21.5 Center Contribution to Retiree Health Benefit Premiums..........ccccooeviviiniiiennnn 39
21.6  Sick Leave Redemption Credit. ..o e s 40
RULES AND REGULATIONS .......oo ittt sttt nns 41
Local 856
iii

82



23.

24.

25.

26.

217.

28.

29.

30.

31

00122747.1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

(Continued)
Page
SAVINGS CLAUSE ...ttt 42
SENIORITY Lttt e bbbt et e b et e e e e e e e enes 43
24.1  SENIONEY DALES.....cetiiieiiiiie ittt bbb 43
24.2  SENIOIIEY teivtiitieie sttt b bbb bbb e 43
24.3  Adjustment Of SENIOMILY DAtES.......ccviieriiiieiiiieie e 44
SHIFT BID ..ottt 45
25.1  DISPALCNEIS. ...ttt 45
25.2  ANNUAL SNITEBIO ..o 45
25.3  DISPALCN SUPEIVISOIS ....oueiiiiiiiiieiee ettt 45
TERM OF AGREEMENT AND REOPENERS.........cooiiiieee e 46
26.1  TOIMN it 46
26.2  REOPENEIS. ...ttt ettt nre e 46
TESTING RELEASE TIME ...t 47
27.1  Release t0 PartiCIPALE ........c.civeieiieie ettt bbbt ee e 47
27.2  NIGNEPEISONNEL.......ciiiiieiiee ettt 47
TRAINING ...ttt et e st e s e e st e st e s e e st eneeseaneeneaneeneene e 48
UNITFORIMS ...ttt ettt s st s e s e st e se e s e e neaneeneaneeneeneeneas 49
291 INILIAI HITE oo 49
29.2  ANNUAI ATTOWANCES ..ottt 49
29.3  PAICRES ... 49
WWAGES ...ttt ettt 50
30.1  Salary SChEAUIE.......c.o s 50
30.2  Night Shift Differential ..........cccoooiiiiiiiie s 50
30.3  LONGEVILY ...ttt ettt ettt ettt enes 50
30.4  Step Placement / AAVANCEMENT .........cc.oouiiiiiiiriiieieie e 50
30.5  ASSIGNEU SNITES ..ot 51
30.6  Compensatory Time Off (CTO).....ccoiiiiiiiieiisieiesee e 51
30.7  Processing Payment Of WAZES .......ccoiueiiiieiiiiieiisie e 52
30.8  EMDQ COMPENSALION. ....ccuiiiiiiriiiiieiesieeiesieeie ettt st sre bbb e e 52
WORKWEENK ...ttt ettt 53
311 DEFINITIONS. ..ottt ettt 53
312 WOIK SChEAUIE ...t 53
Local 856
iv

83



TABLE OF CONTENTS

(Continued)

APPENDIX A

REPRESENTED JOB CLASSIFICATIONS...................
APPENDIX B-1

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE, STEP ONE.........c..cccuevu.e.
APPENDIX B-2

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE, STEP TWO........cccooueen.
APPENDIX C

INSURANCE AND OTHER BENEFITS..........ccccoeine.
APPENDIX D

SALARY SCHEDULE .......ccoocoiiiiiiiiiiece e
SENIORITY LIST #1

VACATION BID / REDUCTION IN FORCE.................

SENIORITY LIST #2
SHIFT BID / ON-CALL / MANDATORY OVERTIME

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING
16-HOUR MAXIMUM.......coiiiiiiiiii e

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING
NEW EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION......ccccccoiiiiiiie

00122747.1

Local 856

84



00122747.1

PREAMBLE

11

1.2

1.3

14

Parties

This Agreement is made and entered into between the Sacramento Regional Public
Safety Communications Center, hereinafter referred to as “Center,” and Freight
Checkers, Clerical Employees and Helpers, Local Union 856 Affiliated with the
International Brotherhood of Teamsters, hereinafter referred to as “Local 856 or
“Union,” in accordance with the provisions of California Government Code Section
3500 et seq. and Center Resolution #5-81 pertaining to employer-employee relations.

Acceptance

This Agreement shall not be binding on either party until accepted on behalf of the
Center by motion or resolution of the Governing Board and on behalf of Local 856 by
majority vote of the members of Local 856, as evidenced by the signature of an
officer of Local 856 on this Agreement.

Members of the Bargaining Unit

The agreements contained herein shall pertain only to those eligible employees whose
job classifications are included in the Dispatchers’ Bargaining Unit for which Local
856 has been formally recognized as exclusive representative. A list of those
classifications is attached as Appendix A.

Entire Agreement

It is the intent of the parties that this Agreement sets forth all agreements and
understandings between the Center and Local 856 pertaining to matters within the
scope of representation. The Center retains the right to promulgate reasonable rules
and regulations, as deemed appropriate by the Center, subject to the right of
recognized employee organizations to consult with respect to any such rules and
regulations which directly affect wages, hours or other terms and conditions of
employment.

Local 856

85



2.

00122747.1

UNION MEMBERSHIP

2.1 General

211

2.1.2

Every person in a bargaining unit position has a right to be a member of the
Union and enjoy the rights and privileges of such membership. However,
Union membership or payment of agency fees is not a requirement for Center
employment.

The provisions of this Article (2) shall be in effect during the term of this
Agreement and during any mutually agreed upon extension of that term.

2.2 Bargaining Unit Member Information

2.2.1

2.2.2

New Unit Members

The following information concerning new bargaining unit members shall, as
permitted by law, be delivered electronically to the Local 856 shop steward
no later than thirty (30) days after the unit member’s date of hire in a
bargaining unit position:

1. Name

2. Job Title

3. Phone Numbers: work, home and personal cellular
(voluntary per Section 2.3 below)

4, Personal email address, if one is on file with the Center
(voluntary per Section 2.3 below)

5. Home address

(voluntary per Section 5.6 below)

Existing Bargaining Unit Member Information

On or about March 1, July 1, and November 1 of each calendar year, the
following information shall be delivered electronically to the Local 856 shop
steward for all bargaining unit members:

1. Name

2. Job Title

3. Phone Numbers: work, home and personal cellular
(voluntary per Section 2.3 below)

4. Personal email address, if one is on file with the Center
(voluntary per Section 2.3 below)

5. Home address

(voluntary per Section 2.3 below)

Local 856

86



2.3 Voluntary Information

Upon written request of any unit member, the Center shall NOT disclose the unit
member’s home address, home telephone number, personal cellular phone number or
personal email address to:

2.3.1 Local 856; or
2.3.2 any other person/organization (except as required by law).

2.4 Shop Stewards

The Union shall select one (1) unit member to serve as the Lead Shop Steward. The
Union may select up to three (3) additional unit members to serve as Alternate Shop
Stewards. The Union will keep the Center advised in writing, at all times, of the
identity of the unit members selected.

25 Payroll Deduction

Union dues may be paid to the Union through payroll deductions.

001227471 Local 856

87



BULLETIN BOARDS

Local 856 may, at its own expense, place one Union bulletin board, not to exceed three feet
by four feet (3' x 4') in size, in the Center for the purpose of communicating normal and usual
Association business to the membership. Specific placement of such a board shall be subject
to the approval of the Center management. The Local 856 Lead Shop Steward shall be
responsible for maintaining such a board.

Local 856

00122747.1

88



4.

00122747.1

CALL-BACK

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Definition

Call-back is unscheduled work. Call-back work occurs when a unit member is either
(1) called back to work at the Center after completion of his/her shift and departure
from the work site or (2) assigned to perform actual (not simulated or voluntary
training) dispatcher service off Center property. Scheduled meetings, training,
classes, presentation, etc., are not call-back situations.

Compensation

4.2.1 A unit member who is called back to work shall be compensated at time and
one-half for a minimum of four (4) hours per call back.

4.2.2 If four (4) hours of work are not required of the unit member, the unit
member may request to leave earlier. If approved by the Shift Supervisor, the
unit member may leave and will only be compensated for actual hours
worked.

Adjacent to a Shift

This provision shall not apply to situations where a unit member is directed to report
early for a unit member’s assigned shift or held over. In such cases, compensation
shall be for the actual time worked at time and one-half.

Commencement of Compensated Time

When an individual is called at home and directed to report to work, compensated
time does not begin until the individual is actually at the place where work is to be
accomplished.

Local 856

89



S. DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

00122747.1

Definition

The Center may reprimand, suspend, discharge, or otherwise discipline unit members
for cause. Counseling of unit members with respect to performance deficiencies and
similar matters, whether oral or documented, shall be considered informal discipline
and shall not be subject to Sections 5.2 through 5.5.

Commencement of Investigation

5.2.1 A unit member shall be informed within twenty-one (21) calendar days of the
initiation of an investigation that involves them.

5.2.2 The time period shall commence when the Deputy Director of Operations or
the Executive Director knew, or should reasonably have known, of the facts
which resulted in the investigation.

Notice of Proposed Disciplinary Action

5.3.1 Notice of Proposed Disciplinary Action shall be provided to the unit member
in writing and shall include:

5.3.1.1 astatement of the nature of the proposed disciplinary action;
5.3.1.2 the effective date of the proposed action;
5.3.1.3 astatement of the reasons for the discipline; and

5.3.1.4 the time and place at which he or she may answer the Notice of
Proposed Disciplinary Action.

5.3.2 A duplicate of the Notice shall be sent to the Local 856 Business Agent.

Withdrawal of Notice

In the event the unit member who is the subject of the proposed disciplinary action
presents evidence which results in the withdrawal of the Notice of Proposed
Disciplinary Action, all reference to said Notice shall be removed from the unit
member’s personnel file.

Binding Arbitration

In the event the Center determines to proceed with the proposed discipline after the
meeting set forth in 5.3.1.4, Local 856 may request binding arbitration pursuant to
Step 3 of the grievance procedure. Such request shall be made within twenty-one
(21) calendar days of service of the Center’s determination to proceed with discipline.

Local 856

90



00122747.1

5.6

Retention of Records

5.6.1

5.6.2

If a unit member who is the subject of proposed disciplinary action presents
evidence which results in a withdrawal of the Notice of Proposed Disciplinary
Action, all reference to that Notice shall be removed from the unit member’s
personnel file.

If requested by the unit member, in writing, material related to informal
discipline (oral or documented counseling) previously imposed will be
removed twelve (12) months after final resolution. Material related to formal
discipline (written reprimand, suspension, discharge) previously imposed will
be removed twenty-four (24) months after final resolution. This shall not
apply in the following circumstances:

5.6.2.1 any other discipline has been imposed in the intervening months.

5.6.2.2 the prior discipline related to a federal or state law (e.g. sexual
harassment, racial discrimination, etc.).

Local 856

91



6. CENTER RIGHTS
The Center retains all rights and functions of management specifically provided for in
Section 5 of Center Resolution #5-81 and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall be

construed to limit, other than as a matter of procedure, the Center’s ultimate ability to
exercise its management rights.

001227471 Local 856

92



00122747.1

EDUCATION REIMBURSEMENT

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Tuition, Books, etc.

The Center will reimburse unit members for tuition, books and educational fees in
accordance with this Article.

Job Related

All course work or training must be job related and pre-approved. The determination
of job-related is not grievable. A denial, however, may be appealed from the Deputy
Director of Operations to the Executive Director. The decision of the Executive
Director shall be final.

Cap on Expenditures

There shall be a cap of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) per unit member per fiscal
year. Further, not more than Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) may
be required of the Center pursuant to this Article for all unit members in any fiscal
year.

Eligibility for Reimbursement

7.4.1 The Center will reimburse, on completion of the course or training, provided
the unit member either (1) received a grade of “C” or better; or (2) received a
“pass” if the course was graded pass/fail.

7.4.2 The Center will only reimburse for education completed after the second
anniversary of the unit member’s employment with the Center.

Requests Exceed the Cap

If requests exceed the cap set forth in Paragraph 7.3, eligibility for reimbursement
shall be based on the date a unit member first requested pre-approval of the course
(i.e., “first-received”). Should the unit member fail to satisfy the requirements in
Paragraph 7.4, opportunity for reimbursement shall then be offered to the next
eligible unit member.

Flex Time

Flex time may be utilized, with Center approval, provided it does not cause a back fill
with overtime.

Local 856

93



00122747.1

7.7

7.8

Non-Working Time

Pre-approval of course work or training is for the purpose of reimbursement only and
does not convert the hours spent in such course work or training to working time.

Education Incentives

7.8.1 For a unit member to earn the total allowable educational incentive, he/she
must have registered, earned and obtained their degree through a regionally
accredited college or university (WASC or equivalent). The submittals must
include a copy of the diploma from the accrediting college. Each submittal
will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis.

° Unit members who possess a Bachelor’s degree from an accredited
college or university shall receive one percent (1%) of base pay.

° Unit members who possess a Master’s degree from an accredited
college or university shall receive one and one-half percent (1.5%) of
base pay.

7.8.2 The incentives in 7.8.1 are cumulative.

Local 856
10

94



8. EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

Notwithstanding the provisions of this Agreement, unit members shall retain all rights
provided for in Government Code section 3500 et seq. and Section 4 of Resolution #5-81.

001227471 Local 856
11

95



9.

00122747.1

LEAVES

9.1

Funeral Leaves

9.1.1 Leave for Family Members

9.12

9.13

9.14

9111

9112

9.113

A unit member shall be eligible for the lesser period of either five
(5) consecutive calendar days or three (3) consecutive shifts of
leave without loss of pay for the purpose of arranging for and/or
attending the funeral of a member of the immediate family. If the
funeral is to be postponed (i.e. will not occur within seven (7)
calendar days after the death), the unit member will advise the
Center and the leave may be deferred to coincide with the actual
funeral ceremony.

The unit member shall list the relationship to the deceased on the
leave request form. For the purposes of this section, immediate
family includes the unit member’s spouse or domestic partner and
the child, mother, father, step-mother, step-father, aunt, uncle,
grandmother, grandfather, grandchild, sister, brother, daughter-in-
law, son-in-law of the unit member or the unit member’s spouse or
domestic partner.  Also included is any person permanently
domiciled in the unit member’s household.

CTO/Vacation and/or leaves of absence will also be available if
additional time away from work is required and can be
accommodated by the Center.

Leave for Others

If a unit member has a funeral to attend of someone outside the defined
immediate family, CTO/vacation time outside the normal vacation rules as
outlined in Section 9.4 will also be available if the absence can be
accommodated by the Center. Proof of date of the funeral may be required.

Notice

The unit member should make every attempt possible to notify management
when the use of funeral leave is anticipated.

Proof

Proof of the date of the funeral, acceptable to the Center, may be required.

Local 856
12

96



00122747.1

9.2 Jury Duty Leave

9.21

9.2.2

9.2.3

Summons for Service

Unit members summoned for trial jury service in either State or Federal court
will be released from scheduled duty without loss of pay for those periods
during which they are required to be present at the courthouse.

Notice to Center

A unit member who is required to report for jury duty shall provide Center
management with a copy of the notice promptly upon receipt. Management,
after consultation with the unit member, shall contact the Jury Commissioner
and arrange for a mutually satisfactory time for the unit member to satisfy the
jury service obligation.

Temporary Reassignment

For the week in which their jury service obligation is scheduled, the unit
member may be reassigned to days with either an eight (8) or a ten (10) hour
schedule (Monday through Friday). This day assignment may be performing
dispatch duties on a day shift or may be to a special project. If the unit
member is empaneled, and jury service extends beyond the original week,
his/her modified assignment shall also be extended until the end of the week
in which the trial is completed.

9.2.3.1 A unit member scheduled to work on the Sunday before a week of
jury duty may elect to work a full or partial shift, only with the
approval of the Deputy Director of Operations and in compliance
with Section 15.3 and any applicable rule.

9.2.3.2 A unit member may choose to work on the Saturday following a full
week of jury duty only with the approval of the Deputy Director of
Operations and in compliance with Section 15.3 and any applicable
rule.

9.2.3.3 Each unit member must, however, work at least their scheduled
hours (either 36 or 48) during a week of jury service as to not affect
their pay.

9.2.3.4 Consistent with Paragraphs 9.2.3.1, 9.2.3.2, and 9.2.3.3, the goal is
to transition the unit member back to his/her normal assignment at
the earliest opportunity following completion of jury service.

9.2.3.5 In appropriate circumstances, this may result in the temporary
transfer of one or more unit members from the day shift to
accommodate the jury duty unit member’s temporary reassignment.

Local 856
13

97



00122747.1

9.24

Return to Work

If a unit member has reported to the courthouse, and is released from jury
service before 2:00 p.m., he/she shall return to work. A unit member who
does not wish to return to work may call Center management and request
permission to utilize vacation/CTO.

9.3 Sick Leave

9.3.1

9.3.2

9.3.3

Definition

Sick Leave, as used in this Agreement, shall be defined as absence from work
without loss of pay because of the unit member’s non-service related illness
or injury.

9.3.1.1 Accrued sick leave may be utilized in the case of illness of a minor
child, or a parent (as defined in Labor Code Section 233), or any of
the following persons who are living in the unit member’s
household: spouse, domestic partner, or grandparent (including,
subject to submission of appropriate documentation, any person
domiciled in unit member’s household and recognized by the
Internal Revenue Service as a dependent).

9.3.1.2 If the Center deems absences related to 9.3.1.1 to be beyond
reasonable limits, the unit member will first be counseled before
additional action is taken. Alternatives may be explored to assist
the unit member.

Entitlement

9.3.2.1 Each unit member shall earn ten and one-half (10%2) hours of sick
leave per month of service.

9.3.2.2 Unit members shall be entitled to accumulate sick leave on an
unlimited basis.

Verification

9.3.3.1 A unit member who is absent because of sick leave on six (6)
consecutive work shifts shall furnish a letter from their doctor
stating that they have been examined and, in the doctor’s
professional opinion, are able to return to work. The letter shall
further state whether the unit member has been unconditionally
released to return to normal duties; if not unconditionally released,
the doctor shall specifically list any applicable restrictions. Should
any restrictions be placed upon the unit member’s return, the Center
shall have sole authority to determine whether the unit member
shall return to work and under what conditions.

Local 856
14

98



9.3.4 Reimbursement for Appropriate Use of Sick Leave

9.3.4.1 As an incentive to promote appropriate use of sick leave, unit
members who have rendered a minimum of five (5) continuous
years of service with the Center at the time of retirement or
resignation may choose to be compensated for the cash value of
existing accrued sick leave based on the following schedule:

Years of % of Cash Value
Continuous Service (at straight time)
5-10 25%
11-15 35%
16 or more 50%
Notes:
1. This shall not apply in the case of a separation for cause.
2. Any sick leave compensated pursuant to this provision shall

not be eligible for conversion to Section 20965 Credit for
Unused Sick Leave (see Section 21.6).

9.3.4 Wellness Incentive

9.3.4.1 Unit members who use no sick leave in a period of six—(6)
continuous months shall be entitled to receive a wellness certificate
to take one workday off with pay.

9.34.1.1 This day must be taken within twelve (12) calendar
months after issuance of the certificate.

9.3.4.1.2 Usage shall be in half (*2) day or full day increments.

9.3.4.1.3 The certificate shall have no monetary value and is not
transferable. The use and approval of the certificate
shall be in the same manner as vacation pursuant to
Article 9.4.

9.4 Vacation

9.4.1 Seniority Date

For purposes of Paragraph 9.4.2., “seniority date” shall be defined the same
asitisin Article 24.1.1.

001227471 Local 856
15

99



00122747.1

9.4.2 Entitlement

9.4.3

9.4.4

Each unit member shall be credited, on a monthly basis and in accordance
with the seniority date schedule set forth below, the following hours of annual
leave (vacation). In order to actually take vacation time, a unit member must
have worked at least six (6) months unless special circumstances exist.

Months Monthly Annual
1..... 36 8 hours (95 ST}?;S
37....72 10 hours (112(?3';1?;3
73....108 12 hours (11424 S';ﬁ%g
109. . ..144 14 hours %ffsm?;‘tg
145. .. .. over 16 hours (11962 ST}?#S

Annual Vacation Bid

9431

9.4.3.2

9.4.3.3

9434

Each unit member assigned to twelve (12) hour shifts shall, by
December 1st, bid at least one consecutive work week of vacation.
Each additional bid, in excess of one work week, must be in full
consecutive work week amounts (e.g., 36, 72, 108 hours).

Unit members assigned to shifts other than twelve (12) hours shall
bid at least one (1) consecutive work week of vacation. Each
additional bid, in excess of one (1) work week, must be in full
consecutive work week amounts.

At least one (1) Dispatcher may bid vacation per shift.
Vacation shall be bid as follows:

9.4.3.4.1 Dispatchers shall bid based upon their “agreed upon”

placement on Seniority List #1.

Requests During the Year

9441

9.4.4.2

A request to utilize vacation shall be processed on a first-received
basis.

The Center shall not be required to grant, but shall not unreasonably
deny, any request.

Local 856
16

100




00122747.1

9.4.5

9.4.6

9.4.7

9.4.8

9.4.9

Cancellation of Vacation

9.45.1 Cancellation of vacation by a unit member may cause the provisions
of Paragraph 9.4.6 to apply.

9.4.5.2 In appropriate circumstances, the Center may cancel vacation to
maintain operational readiness. Prior to doing so, the Center will
attempt to temporarily reassign an employee to the shift in need.

Annual Leave Bank

9.4.6.1 No unit member may have credited to their account, at any time,
more than twice their current year’s accrual rate of vacation (e.g., a
unit member with zero (0) to thirty-six (36) months of service could
have one hundred ninety-two hours (192) credited to their account).

9.4.6.2 If a unit member has accumulated the maximum permitted, vacation
accrual shall be suspended and the unit member shall accrue no
additional vacation until the unit member’s vacation accumulation
is less than the maximum.

9.4.6.3 Should the Center cancel a unit member’s scheduled vacation, the
maximum permitted accrual for the next year may be exceeded by
the number of hours cancelled.

Compensation Upon Separation

At the time of separation for any reason, a unit member shall be compensated
at his/her then current base hourly rate, for all vacation earned, accumulated
and not used up to and including the effective date of separation.

Prior Approval

No unit member shall take vacation without prior written approval from the
Center.

Vacation Redemption

Once each calendar year, a unit member may elect to receive compensation
from the Center for up to seventy-two (72) hours of accrued and unused
vacation. To receive compensation, the unit member shall comply with the
following requirements:

9.49.1 after the vacation redemption, the unit member must still have
seventy-two (72) hours of accrued and unused vacation in his/her
account;

9.4.9.2 he/she must have made an irrevocable, written notification to the
Center (by the 15" of the calendar month preceding the month in

Local 856
17

101



00122747.1

9.49.3

9.49.4

which she/he intends to complete the vacation redemption) of the
number of vacation hours to be redeemed,;

he/she must have used, in the twelve (12) months immediately
preceding the vacation redemption, not less than one (1) weeks’
worth of vacation hours (may be thirty-six (36) hours or forty (40)
hours);

his/her accrued vacation hours shall be reduced by the number of
hours for which he/she is compensated. Compensation may be
requested in a separate check or included in the unit member’s
regular monthly pay check.

Local 856
18

102



10.

00122747.1

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

10.1

10.2

Definitions

10.1.1

Grievance. The term “grievance” as used in this Agreement is limited to a
complaint or request of a unit member or Local 856 which involves the
interpretation or application of, or compliance with the provisions of this
Agreement which adversely affects the unit member.

10.1.2  Grievant. A “grievant” is the unit member or Local 856 who files the
grievance.

10.1.3 Time Limits. Grievances not presented within the time limits established
for each step of this procedure shall not be considered.

10.1.4  Presentation. A unit member and a Local 856 representative or shop
steward may present a grievance while on duty, provided such presentations
and discussions do not disrupt Center operations and are kept to a
reasonable minimum.

10.1.5 Day. A “day” is a calendar day.

10.1.6  Informal. While not required, unit members are strongly encouraged to
attempt informal resolution of all potential grievances.

Procedure

All grievances as defined herein shall be processed in accordance with this procedure.
The Center may refuse to consider a grievance, in those circumstances where the
aggrieved party has not followed this procedure.

10.2.1

10.2.2

STEP 1. Within thirty (30) days of the acts and/or omissions giving rise to
the grievance or within thirty (30) days of time the unit member or Local
856 should reasonably have been aware of the acts and/or omissions which
gave rise to the grievance, the grievance shall be presented in writing to the
Deputy Director of Operations. If the grievance is not resolved within
fifteen (15) days of the date on which it is first presented at Step 1, the
grievant may proceed to Step 2.

STEP 2. Within fifteen (15) days of the written determination at Step 1, or
within fifteen (15) days of the date the written determination was due at
Step 1 if none was issued, the grievance may be presented to the Executive
Director or his/her designee on the form provided for this purpose and
incorporated herein by reference as Appendix B. The Executive Director or
his/her designee shall conduct such investigation as he/she deems
appropriate and shall issue a written determination within thirty (30) days of
the date on which the grievance is first presented at Step 2. If the Executive
Director or his/her designee fails to issue a written determination within the
prescribed period of time, or if the determination is not satisfactory to the

Local 856
19

103



00122747.1

10.2.3

grievant, he/she may request that the matter be submitted to binding
arbitration.

STEP 3. A request for binding arbitration by Local 856 at Step 3 of this
procedure shall be made in writing to the Executive Director or his/her
designee within fifteen (15) days of the date on which the grievant received
a copy of the written determination at Step 2. An arbitrator may be selected
by mutual agreement between the parties. Should the parties fail to agree
upon an arbitrator, they shall make a Joint request to the State Mediation
and Conciliation Service (SMCS) for a list of five (5) names within ten (10)
days of Local 856°s request for binding arbitration. If the parties are unable
to agree upon an arbitrator from the list, the alternate strike method shall be
utilized. It shall be understood that the arbitrator will only interpret this
Agreement and will not have power to add to, delete from, or amend any
part of this Agreement. The arbitrator’s decision shall be final and binding
on the Center, Local 856 and the grievant. All fees and costs of the
arbitrator and court reporter, if any, will be borne equally by the parties.

Local 856
20

104



11.

00122747.1

HEALTH INSURANCE AND OTHER BENEFITS

11.1  Medical Insurance Plans

Eligible unit members shall be provided medical insurance plans in accordance with
options available to PERS contracting agencies.

11.2  Other Benefits

Eligible unit members shall be provided with dental and vision plans plus other
insurances and benefits as set forth in Appendix C.

11.3  Center’s Maximum Monthly Contribution

The Center’s maximum monthly contribution toward the cost of all insurance benefits
shall be as set forth in Appendix C.

Local 856
21

105



12.

00122747.1

HOLIDAYS

12.1

12.2

List of Holidays

Each unit member shall be entitled to compensation, for the following fourteen (14)
holidays in accordance with Paragraph 12.2 below.

January 1st

3rd Monday in January
2nd Monday in February

New Year’s Day
Martin Luther King Jr. Day
Lincoln’s Birthday

3rd Monday in February President’s Day

Last Monday in May

Memorial Day

July 4th Independence Day

1st Monday in September Labor Day

2nd Monday in October Columbus Day
November 11th Veterans Day

4th Thursday in November Thanksgiving Day
Friday after Thanksgiving Day After Thanksgiving
December 24th Christmas Eve
December 25th Christmas Day

December 31st

Compensation

New Year’s Eve

Pay for these fourteen (14) holidays shall be as follows:

12.2.1

For unit members on a 12-hour shift:

12.2.1.1

12.2.1.2

12.2.1.3

If the holiday falls on the unit member’s regular day off and the
unit member does not work — he/she shall be paid eight (8)
hours of premium holiday at straight time (exclusive of FLSA).
If the unit member is scheduled to work on a holiday and takes
personal time off (VAC, CTO, etc.) he/she shall receive eight
(8) premium holiday pay at straight time (exclusive of FLSA).

If the holiday falls on the unit member’s regular day off and the
unit member works — he/she shall be paid regular pay (including
FLSA if appropriate), plus premium holiday pay (at straight
time) for the number of hours actually worked. However, if the
unit member actually works less than eight (8) hours, he/she
shall receive premium holiday pay (at straight time) for eight (8)
hours.

If the unit member works on a holiday which is not the unit
member’s regular day off — he/she shall be paid regular pay
(including FLSA if appropriate) plus premium holiday pay (at
straight time) for the number of hours actually worked.

Local 856
22

106



12.2.1.4 If the unit member takes sick leave, he/she shall receive no
premium holiday pay for hours taken off.

12.2.1.5 This provision (12.2.1) applies only to shifts that begin on the
holiday.

12.2.2  For unit members who work other than 12-hour shifts:

12.2.2.1  Such unit members shall not adjust their work schedule in order
to work a holiday that falls on the unit member’s regular day off
if the adjustment would incur overtime or premium holiday pay.

12.3  Eligibility

To receive pay for a holiday, the unit member must have been in full-paid status the
unit member’s regular shift immediately before, and immediately after, the holiday.

001227471 Local 856
23

107



13.

00122747.1

LEAVES OF ABSENCE
13.1  Military

13.2

13.3

13.4

Unit members shall be eligible for leaves of absence for military duty in accordance
with the requirements of applicable State and Federal law.

Disability

Permanent unit members who are physically disabled for at least thirty (30) calendar
days and up to one hundred twenty (120) calendar days, and who have exhausted
their Center-paid leave benefits, shall be eligible for an unpaid leave of absence of up
to four (4) months.

13.2.1  During this additional leave, which shall also satisfy the Center’s obligation
under the State and Federal “Family Leave Acts,” the Center shall not refill
the unit member’s position on a permanent basis.

13.2.2  Unit members on this leave of absence shall:

13.2.2.1  accrue seniority (see 24.3.1) and shall continue to be covered
under the Center’s Health, Dental, Vision, Life and LTD
programs with the Center making its normal contribution
toward such coverage.

13.2.2.2  NOT accrue additional sick leave and/or vacation.
Personal

Unit members who have completed the initial probationary period shall be eligible, at
the sole discretion of the Center, for an unpaid personal leave of absence for a period
not to exceed four (4) months. This leave of absence shall not be used for the
purpose of seeking or being employed elsewhere. Unit members serving a
promotional probationary period shall, if the leave is granted, have the probationary
period extended. During this leave, the Center shall not refill the unit member’s
position on a permanent basis. Unit members on a personal leave of absence do not
accrue seniority or any other benefits. Subject to lawful rules of the insurance
provider, unit members may continue any insurance benefit by paying the Center for
the full cost of the monthly premiums at least one (1) month in advance.

In Case of a RIF or Exercise of Management Rights

Notwithstanding any of the above, the Center shall not be prohibited from
reorganizing, instituting a reduction in force or otherwise exercising its management
rights, except that unit members on approved leaves of absence shall preserve all
rights otherwise available to Center unit members.

Local 856
24

108



00122747.1

13.5

13.6

Return to Work

A unit member who does not return to work at the expiration of an approved leave
shall be separated from employment as a voluntary resignation. The Center may, in
its sole discretion, reinstate the unit member if he/she presents a showing of good
cause for the failure to return within ten (10) days of the scheduled return date. If
reinstated, the break in service shall be ignored.

Employee Organization Leave

13.6.1

13.6.2

Bargaining

If required, a reasonable number (typically no more than two (2)) of the
negotiating committee members of Local 856 shall be granted reasonable
leave from duty with full benefits for all meetings between the Center and
the Union for the purpose of meeting and conferring on the terms of a
Memorandum of Understanding when the meetings take place at a time
during which the member is scheduled to be on duty.

Union Business Leave

13.6.2.1

13.6.2.2

A member of the Union who has been authorized by the Lead
Shop Steward or the Union President to conduct business on
behalf of the Union shall be released from duty without a
deduction in pay for activities that have been mutually deemed
beneficial to improving the labor and employment relationship
in the Center.

By way of illustration and not limitation, this will include:

e Unit meetings;

» Disciplinary hearings;

» Grievance procedures;

» Labor classes and seminars;
*  Work-related funerals.

The preceding list is not all-inclusive and other permitted uses
may be identified by the Executive Director and the Unit
Representative.

By way of illustration and not limitation, this leave shall never
be used for matters such as the following:

e In protest of the Center or any other employer/public
agency;

» For an activity that does not benefit both the Union and the
Center;

* An activity that would discredit either the Union or the
Center;

Local 856
25

109



* Personal Leave, Vacation, etc.

13.6.3  Not Hours Worked

If a Center employee is serving as a Union Representative during off-duty
hours, such time shall not be regarded as hours worked.

001227471 Local 856
26

110



14.

00122747.1

ON-CALL DISPATCHER STATUS

14.1

14.2

14.3

Sign-Up

To cover for illnesses, other unforeseen circumstances, and/or to ensure adequate
staffing, an on-call Dispatcher program has been established.

14.1.1 Mandatory

Each Dispatcher who works the 12-hour shift schedule shall sign up for an
equally shared number of on-call shifts on his/her days off. Where the
number of on-call shifts per employee is uneven, the extra shifts will be
distributed in inverse order of seniority (see List #2).

14.1.2 Voluntary

When a Dispatcher 1 or Dispatcher 2(A) is signed up for the mandatory on-
call, a voluntary on-call will be posted. A Dispatcher 2(B) may sign up for
this on-call on a voluntary basis. The voluntary on-call will only be called in
if there is a need for radio coverage that cannot be filled by the mandatory on-
call, or if an additional call back is needed after the mandatory on-call has
been called in. If the Dispatcher 1 or Dispatcher 2(A) should trade their
mandatory on-call to a Dispatcher 2(B), the voluntary on-call will be
cancelled and a new voluntary on-call posting will be created where needed.

On-Call Period

Each on-call period will be fourteen (14) hours (day shift on-call will be 0500 to
1900, and night shift on-call will be 1700 to 0700). An on-call person will only be
scheduled to work up to twelve (12) hours within that period, but must be available
for contact/assignment during the entire period. The unit member will be given a
designated time to report (this shall not be sooner than two (2) hours after contact).
Except in cases of a specifically deferred start time, a unit member may report to
work as soon as possible after contact.

Compensation
For each on-call shift, the unit member will be compensated Fifty Dollars ($50.00).

14.3.1  Payment shall typically be made in the same manner as out-of-class. The
Center shall process as soon as reasonably practical.

14.3.2  If the unit member is required to work, pay shall be calculated in the normal
manner.

14.3.3  Unit members who are sick for their on-call day will not be compensated.

Local 856
27

111



14.4  Day Shift/Night Shift

14.4.1 Unit members assigned to the day shift, who work the majority of their hours
on the day-shift, must sign up for their on-call for the day shift time period.

14.4.2 Unit members assigned to the night shift, who work the majority of their
hours on the night shift, must sign up for their on-call for the night shift time
period.

14.4.3 Unit members whose shifts are equitably split (six [6] hours on days and six
[6] hours on nights) shall sign up for their on-call for the night shift time
period.

14.4.4 All unit members shall receive a mandatory ten (10) hours off between the
overtime shift and their regularly scheduled shift.

145 Three Month Intervals

The on-call sign up list will be posted for three (3) month intervals (January-March,
April-June, July-September, and October-December).

14.6  Shift Trades

Once each unit member has signed up for their required number of on-call shifts,
these shifts can be traded with supervisory approval.

14.7  Sick Leave
14.7.1  The following occurs if an on-call unit member is sick for their on-call day:
14.7.1.1 They receive no pay.
14.7.1.2 There is no “dock” of sick leave.

14.7.1.3 The absence is a factor in the application of the Center’s Policy on
Abuse of Sick Leave.

14.7.2  Except in cases of emergency, an on-call unit member shall call the on-duty
Supervisor as soon as reasonably possible; to report on anticipated absence
due to illness.

001227471 Local 856
28

112



15.

00122747.1

OVERTIME

15.1

15.2

15.3

Advance Approval

All overtime shall be approved in advance.

FLSA

When unit members are directed to work overtime, such overtime worked on the
Dispatch floor shall be paid at time and one-half (1.5) irrespective of FLSA status.

Adjusted Work Hours

15.3.1  Any unit member rendering more than fourteen (14) hours of consecutive
service, who is regularly scheduled to return to the dispatch floor less than
ten (10) hours following such service, shall have the option of:

15.3.1.1  Adjusting his or her start time to give ten (10) hours off;
15.3.1.2  Working his or her full scheduled hours;

15.3.1.3 In accordance with adjusted work hours, working the hours
remaining in his or her regularly scheduled shift (employee will
be compensated for total hours during work week); or

15.3.1.4  Receiving pay for the amount of hours worked on the preceding
shift, report for duty ten (10) hours after preceding shift, and
work an adjusted shift of twelve (12) consecutive hours.

Local 856
29

113



16.

00122747.1

OUT-OF-CLASS PAY

16.1

16.2

Higher Classification

When, at the sole discretion of the Center, an employee is assigned to work in a
higher classification:

16.1.1 at least one-half (%) of a full shift, he or she shall be compensated at his/her
base rate of pay plus Fifty Dollars ($50.00) per shift for the shift to which the
person is assigned.

16.1.2 less than one-half (*2) of a full shift, he/she shall be compensated at his/her
base rate of pay plus one-half (%) the full shift rate (Twenty-Five Dollars
[$25.00]).

Trainer

Dispatchers assigned by their Dispatch Supervisor or the Deputy Director of

Operations to serve as a “trainer” shall receive a fifteen percent (15%) base hourly

rate increase while performing trainer duties.

16.2.1  To serve as a “trainer” requires that the unit member prepare an evaluation,
maintain training logs, etc. It does not include periods of time where the
unit member is engaged in a “sit-along” (Non-Dispatcher Recruit).

16.2.2  The Center shall determine:

16.2.2.1  The qualifications needed to serve as a “trainer”; and

16.2.2.2  Who shall serve as a “trainer.”

Local 856
30

114



17. PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

The Center shall provide payroll deduction services for Local 856 dues and other programs
approved by the Center when said deductions are authorized in writing by the unit member in
a manner to be specified by the Center.

Local 856

00122747.1

31
115



18.

00122747.1

PROBATIONARY PERIOD

18.1

18.2

18.3

Initial Employment by the Center

A Dispatcher may be hired as a Dispatcher 1(A) or as a lateral (defined as a person
with at least two (2) years of public safety dispatching experience). All persons
initially employed as a Dispatcher shall be in probationary status at a minimum for
the first twelve (12) full months of employment by the Center.

18.1.1 Initial Hire as Dispatcher 1(A)

18.1.1.1

18.1.1.2

18.1.1.3

18.1.1.4

18.1.1.5

A new unit member without dispatch experience will be hired as
a Dispatcher 1(A) in a probationary employment status.

A Dispatcher 1(A) will advance in a probationary employment
status to Dispatcher 1(B) upon successful completion of the
Telephone and Main Dispatch Training program. A Dispatcher
1(B) will remain in probationary employment status for twelve
(12) months.

A Dispatcher 1(B) will advance to the training step of
Dispatcher 2(A) upon assignment to the CRO training program.
They will be considered probationary in this classification, but
not in employment.

A Dispatcher 2(A) will advance to the status of Dispatcher 2(B)
upon successful completion of the CRO training program. They
will be considered probationary in this classification, but not in
employment, for twelve (12) months.

Any unit member who does not successfully advance to
Dispatcher 2(B) or who does not successfully complete
classification probation at the status of Dispatcher 2(B) shall be
transitioned back to the status of Dispatcher 1(B) where they
will serve an additional six (6) months in a probationary
employment status.

Promotion Within the Bargaining Unit

18.2.1 A promotional appointment may be rescinded by the Center, at any time,
during the probationary period.

18.2.2  Subject to the provisions of 18.1.1, a regular unit member whose promotion
is rescinded shall have the right to return to his/her former rank.

Extension of Probation

The probationary period may be extended, at the sole discretion of the Center, if a
unit member has not successfully completed training within the twelve (12) month

Local 856
32

116



period or if the unit member has missed at least fifteen (15) consecutive days of work.
A “work missed” extension shall not exceed the number of shifts/days the unit
member missed. Written notice of the extension shall be provided to the unit
member. Pre-approved vacation shall not trigger this provision.

18.4  Continuation of the Selection Process

The probationary period is a continuation of the selection process. During such time,
probationary unit members may be released, at any time, at the sole discretion of the
Center and without cause.

001227471 Local 856
33

117



19.

00122747.1

REDUCTIONS IN FORCE

19.1

19.2

19.3

Meet and Confer

Local 856 and the Center shall make every reasonable effort to cooperate so as to
avoid economic or other circumstances which would require a reduction in Center
staffing. This mutual obligation to reopen the meet and confer process extends to any
provision of this Agreement which relates to the circumstances which threaten to
cause a reduction in force. If during its term the parties hereto should mutually agree
to modify, amend or alter the provisions of this Agreement in any respect, such
changes shall be effective only when reduced to writing and executed by the
authorized representatives of the Center and Local 856. Any such changes validly
made shall become a part of this Agreement and subject to its terms.

Board Decision

In the event the Governing Board, in its exclusive judgment, ultimately decides that a
reduction in force shall be implemented, the Board shall specify the number of
positions to be authorized within each job classification.

Procedures

Note: This topic (Reductions in Force Procedure) shall be referred to the Joint
Labor/Management Committee to draft replacement text needed to accommodate
the new classification structure.

The Executive Director or his/her designee shall then designate those unit members to
be laid off in accordance with the following principles:

19.3.1  Unit members shall be laid off in inverse order of seniority by job
classification. Dispatcher 2 and Dispatcher 1.

19.3.1.1 A unit member laid off from a higher paying job classification
shall, however, have the right to “bump” unit members in a
lower paying job classification in which the higher paid unit
member previously had permanent status.

19.3.1.2 A unit member who “bumps” to a lower paying job
classification will be placed on the seniority list for that
classification in accordance with Article 24.

19.3.1.3  For the purposes of this Article, seniority shall be determined
within job classifications in accordance with Article 24.

19.3.2 In the event a unit member “bumps” to a lower paying job classification in
accordance with the provisions of this Article, his/her salary shall be
immediately reduced to the step of the lower salary range which would
have applied had the unit member never been promoted to the higher
paying position.

Local 856
34

118



00122747.1

194

19.3.3

19.34

When vacancies occur within two (2) years after the date a unit member is
laid off under this Article, the unit member shall be given the opportunity to
be rehired or advanced to their former classification provided a vacancy
exists in that classification, in accordance with seniority and prior to the
employment of any new employee in that classification; provided however,
that such reduced or laid-off unit member meets the physical and other
qualifying standards in effect at the same time that they had been previously
appointed to the classification into which they seek to be returned. If any
such reduced or laid-off unit member fails to report for duty within thirty
(30) calendar days after the mailing to him/her of a written notice by
registered mail to the last known address, he/she shall have lost the right to
be rehired or advanced hereunder.

In the event that a unit member is advanced from one job classification to
another job classification in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph
19.3.3. above, his/her salary shall revert to the step of the higher range that
would have applied had there not been a reduction in job classification as a
result of a general layoff.

Retreat to Lower Classification

19.4.1

19.4.2

19.4.3

This subsection shall apply to all Center employees and is not limited to
employees within Local 856.

In the event of a reduction in force, unless barred by law, any Center
employee shall be allowed to retreat to a position in a lower classification in
which he or she has previously held permanent status.

Seniority under this section shall be established by original hire date in a
probationary capacity with the Center.

Local 856
35

119



20. REHIRES

20.1  Eligibility

20.1.1 A unit member in good standing who voluntarily separates from the
bargaining unit is eligible to be rehired and/or reinstated within twelve (12)
months of separation.

20.1.2  The Center shall be the sole determiner of a former employee’s eligibility
with respect to this provision.

20.1.3  Any person seeking rehire under this provision shall submit to: (1) an
updated background check; and (2) psychological evaluation; and (3) a
fitness for duty medical evaluation.

20.2  Seniority

A unit member rehired within twelve (12) months of a prior separation will retain the
seniority date he/she had at the time of separation, which shall be adjusted in
accordance with Article 24.3 to reflect the break in service.

20.3  Compensation

20.3.1 A rehired or reinstated unit member’s salary shall be at the same step as
when he/she separated from employment.

20.3.2 A rehired or reinstated unit member’s date for step movement will be
his/her date of rehire in accordance with Article 24.1 of this Agreement.

20.4 Vacation and Sick Leave

20.4.1  Separation from Center Employment

20.4.1.1 All vacation and sick leave accrual will start from the date of re-
hire.

20.4.1.2 There shall be no entitlement to previous vacation or sick leave
time based upon prior employment.

20.4.2  Separation from the Bargaining Unit

20.4.2.1 A unit member who separated from the bargaining unit but not
from Center employment shall retain his/her vacation and sick
leave accruals.

001227471 Local 856
36

120



20.5 Probationary Period

All rehired and/or reinstated employees will serve a probationary period of six (6)
months.

001227471 Local 856
37

121



21. RETIREMENT

PLAN

21.1 PERS Contribution

2111

21.1.2

Retirement benefits shall be provided to eligible unit members in
accordance with the contract between the Center and the Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS) effective July 1, 1981 and as amended effective
December 1, 1983, December 1, 1984, June 10, 1997, December 1, 1999,
March 1, 2007, April 1, 2012, April 1, 2013, and November 1, 2013.

The Center’s PERS contract shall include:

(@) A benefit formula of 2.7% @ 55 for individuals not meeting the
definition of a new member according to the Public Employee’s
Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) Section 7522.04(f) (“Classic”
members);

(b) A benefit formula of 2.0% @ 62 for individuals meeting the
definition of a new member according to PEPRA, Section 7522.04(f)
(“New” members).

21.2 1959 Survivor Benefits

Each unit
3) benefit

member shall pay two dollars ($2.00) per month for 1959 Survivor (Level
S.

21.3 Employer Paid Member Contributions (EPMC)

2131

21.3.2

The Center shall pay the employee portion of retirement costs to a
maximum of eight percent (8%) of pay for Classic members. Pursuant to
PEPRA Section 7522.30, EPMC may not be paid for New members.

EPMC shall be treated as reportable compensation for purposes of PERS.

21.4  Sharing Additional Costs

2141 U
th
th

nit members receiving a benefit formula of 2.7% @ 55 shall contribute per
e table at 21.4.2, below, of their PERS reportable compensation to defray
e cost of optional benefits.

21.4.2 The table below lists maximum cost sharing amounts for the Center, as
determined by CalPERS, December 3, 2010.

Unfunded Total Unfunded
Amendment Plermanent Accrued Liability | Accrued Liability
ncreases
Increase Increase
2% @ 60 to 2% @ 55 1.730% 1.136%
2% @ 5510 2.7% @ 55 1.904% 2.916%
00122747.1 Local 856
38

122




Permanent Unfunded Total Unfunded
Amendment | Accrued Liability | Accrued Liability
ncreases
Increase Increase
Total until 12/1/2019: 3.634% 4.052% 7.686%
Total from 12/1/2019 to 3/1/2027: 3.634% 2.916% 6.550%
Total after 3/1/2027: 3.634% 0.000% 3.634%

00122747.1

215 Center Contribution to Retiree Health Benefit Premiums

2151

2152

21.5.3

Credited Completed
Years of Continuous Service

39

Employee eligibility for Center contributions toward retiree medical benefit
programs (to the cap set forth in Appendix C) shall be graduated according
to the following schedule:

Percentage of
Center Contribution

5%
10%
15%
20%
25%
30%
35%
40%
45%
50%
55%
60%
65%
70%
75%
80%
85%
90%
95%

100%

Notwithstanding Section 21.5.1, a unit member employed on October 30,
2012, who would have less than twenty (20) years of continuous service
with the Center by age 55, shall be entitled upon retirement from the Center
to 100% Center contribution (to the cap set forth in Appendix C).

Any unit member hired on or after July 1, 2014, upon retirement from the
Center, notwithstanding Appendix C, section 2.a.(3), shall receive a sum,
not to exceed One Thousand Three Hundred Dollars ($1,300.00) per month,
to be used towards Retiree Health Benefits for the unit member and
qualified dependents. Any unused portion shall be retained by the Center.
The One Thousand Three Hundred Dollars ($1,300.00) shall be pro-rated
according to the schedule set forth in Section 21.5.1.

Local 856

123




21.5.4  Effective July 1, 2014, each unit member shall contribute to defraying the
cost of Post-Employment Retirement Benefits by paying One Hundred
Dollars ($100.00) per month to the Center for placement in a fund that will
be utilized to satisfy the future OPEB obligations of the Center.

21.6  Sick Leave Redemption Credit

On March 1, 2007, the Center signed an Amendment to its Contract with PERS.
Under this Amendment, unused sick leave benefits may be converted for retirement
credit as provided for in Section 20965 of the Public Employee’s Retirement Law.

001227471 Local 856
40

124



22.

00122747.1

RULES AND REGULATIONS

The Center shall have the right to adopt reasonable Rules and Regulations subject to prior
notice to Local 856 and the right to meet and confer on any matter within the scope of
representation.

Local 856
41

125



23.

00122747.1

SAVINGS CLAUSE

If any Article or provision of this Agreement or any portion thereof or the application of such
to any person or circumstance is inconsistent with applicable law or is otherwise held to be
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement or the
application of such portion to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held
invalid shall not be affected

Local 856
42

126



24.

00122747.1

SENIORITY

241

24.2

Seniority Dates

2411

Seniority
24.2.1

24.2.2

24.2.3

The seniority date for employees in the bargaining unit shall be:

24111

24.1.1.2

the actual date of hire in a probationary capacity; or when
applicable, their actual date of classification change from
Dispatcher 1(B) to Dispatcher 2(B) AFTER the probationary
period had elapsed.

With respect to step raises and leave accrual rates, the seniority
date shall be adjusted back to the first of the month if employed
from the first through the fifteenth calendar day, and forward to
the first of the next month if employed from the sixteenth
calendar day through the end of the month.

List #1 (Date of Hire)

Use List #1 for RIF and Vacation Bids.

List #2 (Seniority date based on 24.1.1.1)

Use List #2 for Shift Bid, On-Call, and Mandatory Over-Time (if

applicable).

Updating Lists

List #1 and List #2 reflect an “agreed upon” order of unit members. New
employees are added to the bottom of the list based on hire date.

24231

24.2.3.2

If two (2) unit members have the same hire date, a person hired
as a lateral dispatcher (defined as a person with at least two
years of public safety dispatching experience) will be placed
above an employee hired as a Dispatcher 1(A) (other ties will be
broken by test scores).

A unit member who has passed Telephone and Main Dispatch
Training, and who remains a Dispatcher 1(B), will be placed
below unit members with the same hire date who advanced to
the Dispatcher 2(B) status. If two (2) or more unit members
with the same hire date remain Dispatcher 1(B), seniority will
be based on test scores.

Local 856
43

127



00122747.1

24.3

Adjustment of Seniority Dates

2431

24.3.2

A unit member’s seniority date and promotion date shall be adjusted for any
break in service, including any leave of absence (other than military), which
extends for a period of more than ninety (90) calendar days.

Re-hired unit members shall have their seniority date and promotion date
adjusted to exclude time not employed.

Local 856
44

128



25. SHIFT BID

25.1 Dispatchers

Shift bids shall be by Seniority List #2. The Center shall make reasonable efforts to
assign a unit member to his/her bid shifts and days off.

25.2  Annual Shift Bid

25.2.1  Unit members shall “bid” for preferred shifts on an annual basis.

25.2.2 By October 1 of each year, the Center shall provide the Union with a list of
authorized positions per shift.

25.2.3  The Union shall conduct the annual shift bid and present the results to the
Deputy Director of Operations.

25.2.4  Within fourteen (14) calendar days of presentation of the results, the Center
will confirm assignments for the coming year.

25.3  Dispatch Supervisors

25.3.1 Dispatch Supervisors shall bid, and be assigned, before Dispatchers bid for
desired shifts.

001227471 Local 856
45

129



26.

00122747.1

TERM OF AGREEMENT AND REOPENERS

26.1

26.2

Term

The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect from
date of ratification through and including June 30, 2021, or:

26.1.1

26.1.2

26.1.3

26.1.4

Until earlier amended, modified, or superseded by a properly executed and
accepted Agreement between the parties, or

In the event of an impasse in negotiations concerning an amendment or
modification to the terms and conditions specified herein, by motion or
resolution of the Governing Board of the Center, or

In the event of an emergency either declared by the Governing Board or
declared by the Executive Director and subsequently ratified by the
Governing Board, upon notice to Local 856 from the Center, all of the
portions of this Agreement may be temporarily suspended. This suspension
shall be subject to the right of Local 856 to subsequently meet and confer
on the Center’s emergency actions, or

In the event the Joint Powers Agency known as the Sacramento Regional
Public Safety Communications Center is dissolved.

Reopeners

26.2.1 There shall be no reopeners for the term of this Agreement.

26.2.2 Effective January 1, 2020, the salary schedule shall be improved by three

percent (3%).

Local 856
46

130



217. TESTING RELEASE TIME

27.1 Release to Participate

Unit members who are scheduled to participate in promotional or certification
examinations sponsored by the Center shall be released from duty for the period of
time necessary to permit their participation in the examination process.

27.2  Night Personnel

Night shift personnel shall be granted eight (8) hours off (vacation or CTO) should
they be scheduled to work the night preceding a test in which they are scheduled to
participate.

001227471 Local 856
47

131



28.

00122747.1

TRAINING

All parties recognize the importance of training in the professional development of the public
safety dispatcher in order to meet the needs of the Center’s internal and external customers.

28.1

28.2

28.3

28.4

Unit members who have been scheduled for training will be expected to attend and
shall only be excused in the case of illness or unforeseen emergency. As feasible, a
unit member will be designated as an alternate to attend training in the place of the
person who was actually scheduled should that person be unable to attend.

The Center may mandate staff to provide coverage for persons who must attend
mandatory and update training.

All persons receiving scheduled training, unless occurring when a person is
normally assigned to be at work as part of their regular shift, shall be compensated
in accordance with Article 15.

All qualified personnel will receive an equal opportunity for training and cross-
training. Personnel who have been trained are available for assignment, at the
Center’s discretion, in accordance with the training received.

Local 856
48

132



29.

00122747.1

UNIFORMS

29.1

29.2

29.3

Initial Hire

Upon initial hire each unit member shall be issued three (3) polo shirts, at no cost to
the unit member, for wear when on duty. These shirts shall be of appropriate fit and
bear the logo of the Communications Center. Upon successful completion of
Telephone and Main Dispatch Training and appointment to Dispatcher 1(B), each
unit member shall receive a uniform voucher in an amount not to exceed the cost of a
Class A Uniform.

Annual Allowances

29.2.1  Commencing July 1, 2019, and each July thereafter of this contract, the unit
member shall receive the sum of Five Hundred Fifty Dollars ($550.00) to
use for the purchase of additional uniforms or for uniform maintenance.

29.2.2 Effective January 1, 2019, and every January thereafter, each non-
probationary unit member shall receive a uniform voucher in an amount not
to exceed the cost of a Class A Uniform.

Patches

The Center shall make patches available at no cost to unit members, through the
uniform supplier, to be placed on all new uniforms purchased. When a uniform is
taken out of service, the used patch shall be returned to the Center.

Local 856
49

133



30.

00122747.1

WAGES

30.1

30.2

30.3

30.4

Salary Schedule

Effective upon ratification, each employee in the bargaining unit shall be paid in
accordance with his/her placement on the salary schedule which is Appendix D, Base
Salary Ranges Exclusive of FLSA.

Night Shift Differential

A night shift differential shall be paid to each unit member assigned to the 1900-0700
hour shift at the rate of Fifteen Dollars ($15.00) per shift actually worked or Seven
Dollars and Fifty Cents ($7.50) for six (6) hours (half of a shift) actually worked.

Longevity

The following non-cumulative longevity increments shall be paid to eligible unit
members:

30.3.1  One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) per month after ten (10) complete years of
service.

30.3.2  One Hundred Fifty Dollars ($150.00) per month after fifteen (15) complete
years of service.

30.3.3  Two Hundred Dollars ($200.00) per month after twenty (20) complete years
of service.

30.3.4 Plus an additional Fifty Dollars ($50.00) per month after each five (5)
additional complete years of service (e.g. $250 after 25 years; $300 after 30
years, etc.)

Step Placement / Advancement

30.4.1 All New Hires

New unit members shall be hired at that step which is commensurate with
their education/experience, skills/abilities and recruitment difficulty.

30.4.2 Initial Hire as Dispatcher 1(A)

30.4.2.1 A new unit member without dispatch experience will be hired as
a Dispatcher 1(A) at Step 1.

30.4.2.2  Unit members shall be placed on a new salary range upon
promotion.

30.4.2.3  Once placed on a salary range (assuming multiple steps in the
range), advancement from one salary step to another whether

Local 856
50

134



00122747.1

30.5

30.6

30.4.3

within classification or between classifications shall occur on
the unit member’s anniversary date and be contingent upon the
absence of an unsatisfactory job performance evaluation and
completion of the required training and length of service.

Initial Hire as a Lateral Dispatcher 2(A) or 2(B)

30.4.3.1 A person initially hired as a Dispatcher 2(A) or 2(B) shall
receive a merit increase to the next step in the Dispatcher range
if they complete training within six (6) months of hire. In such
case, they shall also advance to the next higher step on the
seniority date twelve (12) months following initial hire (see
paragraph 24.1.2).

30.4.3.2  Should a person initially hired as a Dispatcher 2(A) or 2(B) not
complete training within six (6) months, he/she shall receive a
merit increase upon completion of training (see Paragraph
30.4.3.1 above) but shall not advance to the next higher step on
his/her seniority date immediately following initial hire.

30.4.3.3  Thereafter, advancement from one salary step to another shall
occur on the unit member’s seniority date and shall be
contingent upon the absence of an unsatisfactory job
performance evaluation and completion of the required length
of service and training.

Assigned Shifts

30.5.1

30.5.2

This Agreement recognizes that some unit members will be assigned, by
management, from 12-hour dispatch shifts to other duties that may have
different work schedules. These unit members shall be known as dispatch
employees on special assignment.

The hourly rate of pay will remain the same.

Compensatory Time Off (CTO)

30.6.1

Accrual Limit. Unless requested by the unit member, and approved by
Center management, no unit member shall earn CTO.

30.6.1.1 If CTO is granted, no unit member may have credited to his/her
account more than eighty (80) hours of CTO at any time.

30.6.1.2 All hours worked, when the total of credited CTO exceeds
eighty (80), shall be compensated in accordance with FLSA
standards.

30.6.1.3  All CTO credited to a unit member’s account shall be paid in
cash to the unit member on the December and June payroll.

Local 856
51

135



Any CTO scheduled as time off in the month following the
scheduled payout is exempt from this cash out.

30.7 Processing Payment of Wages

30.7.1  Unit members shall be paid once per month on the last day of the month:

30.7.1.1  Each paycheck shall include the unit member’s regular hourly
rate (i.e. straight time) for all regularly scheduled hours of work
for the month of payment.

30.7.1.2  Overtime, FLSA, on call, night shift differential, out-of-class
pay and holiday pay, earned during the payment period, shall be
paid through the identified cutoff date found on the Payroll
Calendar.

30.7.1.3  Any overtime, FLSA, on-call, night shift differential, out-of-
class pay and holiday pay, not included in the paycheck for the
payment period in which such amounts were earned, shall be
paid on the next regular payday.

30.7.1.4  If the failure to include payments for overtime, FLSA, on-call,
night shift differential, out-of-class pay and holiday pay, is due
to error not attributable to the affected unit member(s), the
Center shall make an “in lieu of payment” to the affected unit
member(s), as long as the payment error exceeds Fifty Dollars
($50.00). If the payment error is Fifty Dollars ($50.00) or less,
the affected unit member(s) shall be paid on the next regular

payday.

30.7.2  Should payroll not be processed in the manner set forth above, the parties
shall attempt to resolve the problem informally.

30.7.3 Daylight Savings Time Schedule Adjustments

30.7.3.1 Fall: If time at work is extended by one (1) hour beyond the
normal shift, the unit member shall be compensated for the
additional one (1) hour at his/her overtime rate.

30.7.3.2 Spring: If time at work is decreased by one (1) hour short of the
normal shift, the unit member will still be paid for his/her full
shift.

30.8 EMDQ Compensation

When unit members are directed to work as an EMDQ, such work as an EMDQ shall
be paid at time and one-half (1.5) irrespective of FLSA status.

001227471 Local 856
52

136



31

00122747.1

WORKWEEK
31.1 Definitions
31.1.1  Shift: Twelve (12) consecutive work hours.
31.1.2 Work Day: Twenty-four (24) consecutive hours, beginning at 0700 and
ending at 0659 the following calendar day.
31.1.3 Work Week: The work week begins at 0700 hours on Sunday and
concludes at 0659 hours on the following Sunday.
31.1.4 The Center, in cooperation with Local 856, reserves the right to explore

31.2

additional alternate work schedules, i.e., 4-10s, 5-8s, 9-80s etc.

Work Schedule

31.21

31.2.2

31.2.3

The work schedule shall be determined by the Center after consultation
with affected unit members.

Unit members are required to work a normal work week, exclusive of
overtime and paid leave. However, the Center has the discretion to assign
other than a normal workweek to a unit member based upon the needs of
the Center.

Nothing contained herein shall restrict management’s right to assign,
reassign or rotate personnel for the benefit of the Center and/or unit
member needs.

Local 856
53

137



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the representatives of each party to this Agreement have affixed their
signatures to this document on the dates set forth below.

SACRAMENTO REGIONAL PUBLIC FREIGHT CHECKERS, CLERICAL

SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS CENTER EMPLOYEES AND HELPERS, LOCAL UNION
856 AFFILIATED WITH THE
INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF

TEAMSTERS
Date: Date:
By: By:
Marc Bentovoja [Secretary/Treasurer]
Interim Executive Director
Date:

[Local 856 Representative]

Date:

[Local 856 Representative]

Date:

[Local 856 Representative]

001227471 Local 856
54

138



APPENDIX A

REPRESENTED JOB CLASSIFICATIONS

Dispatcher 1(A)
Dispatcher 1(B)
Dispatcher 2(A)
Dispatcher 2(B)

Note: Unit members classified as Call Takers prior to June 30, 2018 will be classified as
Dispatcher 1(B) without a requirement to complete Main Dispatch training.

001227471 Local 856
55

139



APPENDIX B-1

STEP ONE
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY
COMMUNICATIONS CENTER
GRIEVANCE FORM
NOTE: Before filing a formal written grievance, the grievant is strongly encouraged to attempt to resolve the

grievance in an informal conference with his/her immediate supervisor. The formal Step 1 written grievance must
be filed within thirty (30) calendar days after the grievant knew or should reasonably have known of the alleged
violation of the Agreement.

Date of Informal Conference: Supervisor Present at Informal:
1. List the specific Contract provision(s) alleged to have been violated:
ARTICLE PARAGRAPH ARTICLE PARAGRAPH
ARTICLE PARAGRAPH ARTICLE PARAGRAPH
ARTICLE PARAGRAPH ARTICLE PARAGRAPH
2. The date, or date(s), on which the violation allegedly occurred:
3. Describe how the contract articles/paragraphs listed in #1 above were violated; facts must be provided.

(Attach additional sheets if necessary)

4, Explain why the supervisor’s proposed solution at the informal level was not acceptable. Be specific.

(Attach additional sheets if necessary)

5. Specifically, what remedy do you want:
Date Submitted: Date Received:
Grievant’s Signature: Received By:
6. Center’s Step | Response:

(Attach additional sheets if necessary)

001227471 Local 856
56

140



APPENDIX B-2

STEP TWO
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY
COMMUNICATIONS CENTER
STEP 2 GRIEVANCE APPEAL FORM

Date Step | filed: Date Step | decision rendered:
Reason(s) for Appeal:
Specific Remedy Sought:
Conference Requested: Yes No

Date Submitted: Date Received:

Grievant’s Signature: Received By:
Center Response:
00122747.1 Local 856

57

141



APPENDIX C

SACRAMENTO REGIONAL FIRE/EMS COMMUNICATIONS CENTER

INSURANCE AND OTHER BENEFITS

The Center shall provide insurance and other benefits as set forth in this Appendix.

1.

00122747.1

PLANS AVAILABLE

a.

Medical Insurance

The Center shall provide each full-time unit member, and his/her dependents, with
the option of enrolling in any medical insurance plan available through its contract
with the Health Division of PERS.

Dental Insurance

Each full-time unit member, and his/her dependents, may enroll in the dental plan
selected jointly by the Center and Local 856.

Vision Plan

Each full-time unit member, and his/her dependents, may enroll in the vision plan
selected jointly by the Center and Local 856.

Life Insurance, Accidental Death and Dismemberment, and Long-Term Disability

Each full-time unit member shall be enrolled in the term life insurance, accidental
death and dismemberment, and may be enrolled in long-term disability policies
selected jointly by the Center and Local 856. Unit member pays for Long-Term
Disability Insurance.

State Disability Insurance

Each full-time unit member shall participate in the State Disability Insurance (SDI)
Program. Unit member pays for State Disability Insurance.

Employee Assistance Program

The Center shall provide each full-time unit member with access to the Employee
Assistance Program selected jointly by the Center and Local 856. The Center shall
pay the monthly premium for this plan. The Center may exceed the monthly dollar
cost for this program for June 2018-2021.

Local 856
58

142



2.

00122747.1

MONTHLY PREMIUMS AND OTHER COSTS

a.

Premiums

(1)

)

3)

(4)

If actually required, and subject to the “pool” provisions set forth in Section
4, the Center will pay, up to the following amounts on behalf of a full-time
unit member hired prior to July 1, 2014 unless the unit member exercises the
Center’s Health Benefit (Medical, Dental, Vision) Opt-Out benefit option
described below.

For Medical: The actual premium cost (at the lesser of Kaiser HMO or Blue
Shield HMO) for employee plus one (spouse or child).
Employee Only enrollees shall receive actual premium cost
(employee’s choice of Kaiser HMO or Blue Shield HMO).

For Dental: ~ The actual premium cost for employee plus one (spouse or
child).

For Vision:  The actual premium cost for employee plus one (spouse or
child).

For Opt-Out Benefit:
Any unit member who chooses to Opt-Out of the Center’s
Health Benefits (Medical, Dental and/or Vision) shall receive
Four Hundred Fifty Dollars ($450.00) per month. The unit
member shall be required to sign an Opt-Out Benefit waiver.

For all new unit members hired on or after July 1, 2014, the Center will pay
up to One Thousand Three Hundred Dollars ($1,300.00) on behalf of a full-
time unit member to be applied to Medical, Dental and/or Vision benefits.
The provisions of Appendix C, Section 2.a. (3) are not applicable to these unit
members. Any unused funds shall remain in the Center’s Health Benefit

“Pool.” (Appendix C,4.)

On any January 1, for unit members hired prior to July 1, 2014, if the increase
in the premium cost for any plan (medical, dental or vision) is greater than
five percent (5%), the Center’s obligation shall be limited to five percent
(5%) for that plan.

Only unit members actually enrolled in a Center-provided plan will receive an
employer contribution for that insurance.

Local 856
59

143



00122747.1

b. IRC Section 125 Plan

(1) The Center shall establish, and maintain, an IRC Section 125 Plan for the
benefit of its employees.

(2) Monthly costs, if any, shall be borne by employees.
PAYROLL DEDUCTION

Any unit member who is enrolled in one or more of the plans set forth above which costs
more than the Center’s required specific monthly contribution is required to sign a payroll
deduction form and pay the monthly difference by payroll deduction. Failure to execute a
payroll deduction form will result in immediate cancellation of insurance for non-payment of
premiums.

“POOL”

a. Each December of this Agreement, the parties shall meet to establish a “pool” to
assist Full Family enrollees with over-cap costs.

b. The pool shall be created by the difference in actual premiums (medical, dental and
vision) between Employee Only enrollees (as of January 1) and the Employee + 1
cap.

C. The pool dollars shall be distributed equally to Full Family enrollees (as of January 1)

to establish the Full Family cap for the year. The amount distributed to a Full Family
Member enrollee shall not exceed the actual cost of the plan in which they are
enrolled. (The lesser of Kaiser or Blue shield HMO). Any residual funds remaining
in the pool will be equally distributed amongst the remaining non-full family
enrollees.

Local 856
60

144



APPENDIX D

SALARY SCHEDULE
Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5
Dispatcher 1(A) 23.28
Dispatcher 1(B) 23.28 24.44 25.67 26.95 28.30
Dispatcher 2(A) 28.30
Dispatcher 2(B) 28.30 29.72 31.20 32.76 34.40

Effective January 1, 2020, each cell on the Salary Schedule shall be improved by three percent (3%).

Notes:

1. For the duration of this Agreement, negotiated salary schedule increases shall be effected as follows:
a. Each lower step of Dispatcher shall be five percent (5%) lower than the preceding step.

2. For so long as twelve (12) hour shifts are worked, the monthly projected rate shall be computed by multiplying the hourly rate
times 2,288 and dividing by 12. To receive the projected monthly and annual rates, the employee must actually work the
scheduled FLSA hours (see Article 15.2).

001227471 Local 856
61

145




SRPSCC / LOCAL 856
SENIORITY LIST #1
(vacation bid/RIF)

First Name Last Name Employee ID Hire Date Classification
1 | Dana Guerrero 510019 08/02/93 2(B)
2 | Lynn Walker 510079 11/08/99 2(B)
3 | Summer Carroll 510090 07/24/00 2(B)
4 | Amy Wolfe 510105 11/18/02 2(B)
5 | Laura Macias 510115 12/01/03 1(B)*
6 | Dennis McGrath 510125 09/20/04 2(B)
7 | Jillian Short 510154 03/02/09 2(B)
8 | Jennifer Edwards 510155 06/22/09 2(B)
9 | Steve Wootton 510166 03/14/11 2(B)
10 | Roman Kukharets 510170 01/09/12 2(B)
11 | Katherine Shelton 510171 07/09/12 2(B)
12 | Anna Meyer 510185 03/25/13 2(B)
13 | Jennifer Rooke 510191 11/12/13 1(B)*
14 | Marlo Swett 510194 11/12/13 2(B)
15 | Theresa Miller 510199 11/12/13 1(B)*
16 | Kelly Campbell 510201 04/13/15 2(B)
17 | Michelle Goucher 510211 10/13/15 2(B)
18 | Lisa Smelser 510212 10/13/15 2(B)
19 | Timothy Goodnow 510214 10/13/15 1(B)*
20 | Denise Tackett 510198 09/16/16+ 2(B)
21 | Yvonne Vazquez 510230 08/14/17 2(B)
22 | Christina Stockman 510232 08/14/17 1(B)
23 | Eric Kizzie 510236 06/01/18 1(B)
24 | Karen Basi 510238 10/29/18 1(A)
25 | Kari Kling 510243 02/05/19 Recruit
26 | Ashley Curry 510244 02/05/19 Recruit
27 | Danielle Montoya 510245 02/05/19 1(A)
+ adjusted hire date
* classified as Call Taker prior or June 30, 2018
Last updated 04/23/19
00122747.1 Local 856

62

146




SRPSCC / LOCAL 856
SENIORITY LIST #2

(shift bid/on call/mandatory OT)

First Name Last Name Employee ID Hire Date Classification
1 | Dana Guerrero 510019 08/02/93 2(B)
2 | Lynn Walker 510079 06/01/00 2(B)
3 | Summer Carroll 510090 12/24/00 2(B)
4 | Amy Wolfe 510105 11/18/02 2(B)
5 | Laura Macias 510115 12/01/03 1(B)*
6 | Dennis McGrath 510125 09/20/04 2(B)
7 | Jillian Short 510154 03/02/09 2(B)
8 | Jennifer Edwards 510155 06/22/09 2(B)
9 | Roman Kukharets 510170 01/09/12 2(B)
10 | Katherine Shelton 510171 07/09/12 2(B)
11 | Steve Wootton 510166 09/24/13 2(B)
12 | Anna Meyer 510185 03/25/13 2(B)
13 | Marlo Swett 510194 11/12/13 2(B)
14 | Jennifer Rooke 510191 11/12/13 1(B)*
15 | Theresa Miller 510199 11/12/13 1(B)*
16 | Kelly Campbell 510201 04/13/15 2(B)
17 | Michelle Goucher 510211 10/13/15 2(B)
18 | Lisa Smelser 510212 10/13/15 2(B)
19 | Timothy Goodnow 510214 10/13/15 1(B)*
20 | Yvonne Vazquez 510230 08/14/17 2(B)
21 | Christina Stockman 510232 08/14/17 1(B)
22 | Denise Tackett 510198 12/28/17 2(B)
23 | Eric Kizzie 510236 06/01/18 1(B)
24 | Karen Basi 510238 10/29/18 1(A)
25 | Kari Kling 510243 02/05/19 Recruit
26 | Ashley Curry 510244 02/05/19 Recruit
27 | Danielle Montoya 510245 02/05/19 1(A)
* classified as Call Taker prior or June 30, 2018
Last updated 04/23/19
00122747.1 Local 856

63
147



LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING
between the

SACRAMENTO REGIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS CENTER

and the
TEAMSTERS LOCAL 856

The Sacramento Regional Public Safety Communications Center (“Center”) and Teamsters
Local 856 (“Local 856 or “Union”) have recently completed negotiations for a successor
collective bargaining agreement. While not a part of the collective bargaining agreement, the
parties agree:

1.

That the Center shall place the following concept in a Standard Operating Procedure
(“SOP™) that will be in effect during the life the successor agreement (ratification to June
30, 2021):

Except with written Center approval, and the consent of the unit member,
no unit member shall render service for more than sixteen (16)
consecutive hours assigned to the dispatch floor. This shall not apply in
cases of emergency or deployment.

Prior to modifying the SOP during the term of the successor collective bargaining
agreement (ratification through June 30, 2021), the parties shall meet and confer
regarding the effects of the change on wages, hours, terms and conditions of employment
of unit members.

Any unit member employed on July 1, 2018 who retired between July 1, 2018 and
December 31, 2018 (with at least twenty [20] years of service to the Center) shall receive
a sum of money derived from a Performance/Longevity Bonus calculation similar to
that performed for other unit members.

The Center’s Uniform Policy shall be subject to the meet and consult process utilizing the
Joint Labor Management Committee.

The Center’s new classification descriptions of Dispatcher 1(A), Dispatcher 1(B),
Dispatcher 2(A), and Dispatcher 2(B) shall be subject to the meet and consult process
utilizing the Joint Labor Management Committee.

FOR LOCAL 856 FOR THE SACRAMENTO REGIONAL

By:

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS
CENTER

By:

Date:

Date:

00122747.1

Local 856
64

148



SIDE LETTER
between the
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS CENTER
and the
FREIGHT CHECKERS, CLERICAL EMPLOYEES AND HELPERS,
LOCAL 856
AFFILIATED WITH THE INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOQOD
OF TEAMSTERS

(Access to New Employee Orientation for Bargaining Unit Members)

Assembly Bill No. 119 [2017] (*AB 1197) was approved by the Governor on June 27, 2017.

The Sacramento Regional Public Safety Communications Center (“Center™) and Local 856
(856" or “Union”) have agreed to this Side Letter regarding Teamster access to the Center’s
new employee orientation for bargaining unit members.

1. AB 119:

a. Imposed on public employers the mandatory obligation to provide an exclusive
representative with access to new employee orientations for bargaining unit
members.

b. Defines a new employee orientation as the on-boarding process pursuant to which

new employees are advised of their emplovment status, rights, benefits, duties,
and responsibilities, or any other employment-related matters. The on-boarding
process can take place in person, on-line, or through other means or methods.

c. Requires the structure, time, and manner of an exclusive representative’s access to
the on-boarding process implemented by the employer to be determined through
mutual agreement between the employer and the exclusive representative.

2, As required by AB 119, the parties have negotiated the following structure, time, and
manner provisions:

a. Except as permitted by statute, the Union shall be given not less than five (5)
days’ notice in advance of a new employee orientation.

b. If the Center chooses to on-board in person, the Union shall be given thirty (30)
minutes to discuss the rights and obligations created by the collective bargaining
agreement and the role of the representative, and to answer questions.

g If the Center chooses to on-board new employees utilizing an on-line process, it
will meet and confer with the Union concerning how the Union will be given the
opportunity to discuss (on-line) the rights and obligations created by the collective
bargaining agreement and the role of the representative, and to answer questions.

00103818 1

1

00122747.1

65

Local 856

149



00122747.1

General Provisions

a.

This MOU shall remain in full force and effect from the date it is signed, through
June 30, 2021.

() It shall automatically renew each year commencing July 1, 2021 unless
cither party serves written notice upon the other party by the preceding
April 1 of its desire 1o renegotiate its provisions.

(2)  Absent mutual agreement by the Parties. there shall be no reopening of
negotiations on this subject through June 30, 2021.

The Legislature has acknowledged that AB 119 imposes a State-mandated local
program. As a result, if the Center incurs costs in implementing the provisions of
this MOU, and the State fails or refuses to reimburse the Center for those costs,
the terms of this MOU shall be null and void and the Center shall be relieved of
its obligations.

FOR LOCAL 856 FOR THE SACRAMENTO REGIONAL

By:

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS
CENTER

By:

Date:

Date:

00103818 1

66

Local 856

150



	1-Special Meeting Agenda 08.15.2019
	SPECIAL MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD

	2-Board Meeting 7-9-19
	1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR*
	2. PERSONNEL ISSUES*
	3.   CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Anticipated Litigation*
	a.   Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9(b)
	The Board will meet in closed session to discuss significant exposure to litigation.
	Two (2) potential cases

	8-SRFECC 150 FINAL
	9-SRFECC 856 FINAL



